
 

1 

 

 

 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B • Gunnison, 

Colorado 81230 Telephone (970) 641-6065 • 

www.ugrwcd.org 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

AGENDA - REGULAR MEETING   

Tuesday, May 24, 2022 at 1:00 PM 
at the Lake City Fire Station, 

131 N Henson St, Lake City, CO 81235 
 

 
MISSION STATEMENT 

To be an active leader in all issues affecting the water resources of the Upper Gunnison River Basin. 
 

1:00  p.m. 1. Call to Order 
 
1:02   p.m. 2.       Agenda Approval 
 
1:05 p.m. 3. Consent Agenda Items:  Any of the following items may be removed  

for discussion from the consent agenda at the request of any Board  

 member or citizen. 

• Approval of April 25, 2022 Minutes 

• Monthly Budget Summary 

• Consideration of Expenses  

 
1:10 p.m. 4. Legal and Legislative Matters 
 
1:15 p.m. 5. Colorado Dust on Snow Program (San Juan Basin), Jeff Derry 
 
1:30 p.m. 6. Basin Water Supply Update 
 

1:40 p.m. 7. General Manager, Staff and Committee Updates   

• Treasurer’s Report 

• General Manager’s Update 

• “Water Roundup” 2022 Conference Planning Update 

• Wet Meadows Program Update 

 

http://www.ugrwcd.org/


 

2 

 

• Taylor Local User’s Group Update 

o May 5, 2022 Meeting Summary 

• Education & Outreach Committee 

o May 6, 2022 Meeting Summary 

• Scientific Endeavors 

• Gunnison Basin Roundtable Update 

• Gunnison River Festival Update  

 
2:40 p.m. 8. Miscellaneous Matters 

• Gunnison Energy Production - Solar Panels 

• Current Gunnison River Spreadsheet 

• Newspapers and Other Water Articles 
 
2:45   p.m. 9. Citizens Comments 
 
2:50  p.m. 10. Future Meetings 
 
2:55 p.m. 11. Summary of Meeting Action Items 
  
3:00 p.m. 12. Adjournment 
 
This meeting will be followed immediately by the Lake San Cristobal Water Activity 

Enterprise meeting. 
   
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Note: This agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items or the deletion of items at any time.  All times are 
approximate.  Regular meetings, public hearings, and special meetings are recorded, and action can be taken on any item. The 
Board may address individual agenda items at any time or in any order to accommodate the needs of the Board and the 

audience. Persons with special needs due to a disability are requested to call the District at (970) 641-6065 at least 24 hours 
prior to the meeting.   



AGENDA ITEM 3
Consent Agenda Items



 

1 

 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Monday, April 25, 2022 

 

The Board of Directors of the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District (UGRWCD) 

conducted a regular meeting on Monday, April 25, 2022, at 5:30 p.m. in the District office, 210 West 

Spencer Avenue, Suite B, Gunnison, CO, 81230 and via Zoom video/teleconferencing. 

 

Board members present: Sara Bergstrom, Rosemary Carroll, Joellen Fonken, Rebie Hazard, Stacy 

McPhail, Julie Nania, Bill Nesbitt, John Perusek, Michelle Pierce, Don Sabrowski, and Andy Spann.   

 

Others present: 

Cheryl Cwelich, UGRWCD Watershed Programs Coordinator 

Sonja Chavez, UGRWCD General Manager 

John McClow, UGRWCD Legal Counsel 

Luke Mecklenburg, Colorado Attorney General’s Office 

Beverly Richards, UGRWCD Water Resource Specialist 

Jill Steele, UGRWCD Accountant 

Brian Stevens, Bureau of Land management 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

Board President Michelle Pierce called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

2.       Agenda Approval 

 

Michelle said there are three additions to the agenda:  1.  USGS request for funding for algal studies.  2.  

Discussion of draft IGA with Gunnison County for cheat grass coordinator.  3.  Request for resolution in 

support of the District’s WaterSMART grant application to Reclamation for development of a Drought 

Contingency Plan.    

 

Bill Nesbitt moved and Stacy McPhail seconded approval of the agenda as amended.  The motion 

carried. 

 

3. Consent Agenda Items   

 

Stacy McPhail moved and Bill Nesbitt seconded approval of the consent agenda items.  The  

motion carried. 

 

4. Legal and Legislative Matters 



 

2 

 

 

John McClow said he provided  a copy of the State’s Petition for Certiorari in the Hill v. Warsewa case, 

which the board has previously discussed.  He said the petition is self-explanatory and asked if there 

were any questions.   

Bill Nesbitt asked John to talk about public trust doctrine piece that was discussed in the Court of 

Appeals decision.  John said the primary reason the Colorado Water Congress and Attorney General’s 

office are participating in case is that it has significant public trust implications.   Although the parties 

have not specifically raised it, the Court of Appeals ruling implied that the trial court could consider a 

public trust document.  This is not consistent with Colorado law, and at this point, the Attorney General 

and Colorado Water Congress agree that is not appropriate, and that is why they are pursuing a Petition 

for Certiorari.  

 

Bill Nesbitt asked about Senate Bill 22-029, the water speculation bill.  John said it was killed in 

committee last Thursday.   Ironically, Senator Donovan voted against her own bill. 

 

5. Presentation by Brian Stevens, BLM – Forest and Watershed Health/Potential Treatments 

 (North Powderhorn Project) 

 

Brian Stevens, Bureau of Land Management Environmental Specialist, gave a presentation on the 

BLM’s North Powderhorn Fuels Treatment Project. Brian said he began his firefighting career in the 

Pacific northwest in 1992 and has worked in many places in the west and has now been in Gunnison 

almost 22 years.   

 

Project Objectives include mimicking small-scale disturbance on the landscape, improving timber stand 

resiliency against catastrophic fires, and establishing timber species regeneration.   

 

Brian said that conditions in 2013 in the Papoose fire were similar to what we see in Powderhorn and 

much of Colorado and the west.  Lots of standing, dead timber.  In the Papoose fire, the area was heavily 

impacted by the spruce beetle in 2004, then in 2013, a lightning strike caused the fire to take off.  It was 

a high intensity, high severity fire similar to what we are seeing with recent wildfires across the west.  

He has been actively sampling larger dead tree fuel moisture.  They were at 45% in 2016, and now are at 

13%.  This makes those vegetative fuels easier to ignite.  In high heat, high intensity fires, the material 

will burn for years or months, cooking the organic matter out of the soil.  This causes water quality 

issues, mudslides, and the soil blows away.  In the Papoose fire burn area, where there used to be 

Lodgepole Pine and Englemann Spruce there is now scrub.  The scrub area will burn more frequently 

than if it were reforested as fire typically returns to these areas every 10 years, versus 100 years in a 

lodgepole pine forest. It will take hundreds if not thousands of years for intensively burned areas to 

regenerate.    

 



 

3 

 

Brian presented a map of potential fire behavior and a map of drought conditions from 2000-2022 for 

Colorado. With the extremely heavy fuel loading we have in the wilderness area, if we let a fire burn in 

the summer, it will probably not achieve the ecological result we want.  The organics would be burned 

out of soil and the seed bank would burn.  Recovery is especially tough at high elevation.   The answer 

is more and smaller treatments across the landscape in all different vegetation types and at the 

appropriate time. The ability to pick a burn window, location, time of year, is very important. Prescribed 

fires in the wilderness are desirable and very important as we’ve been suppressing fire for way too long 

and our forest vegetation has become incredibly dense and composed of one or two age classes.  We 

need to educate our public that this just isn’t natural. 

 

Director Fonken asked if there were a prescribed burn in Powderhorn, would that region come back with 

the same type of trees?  Brian said hopefully it will.  He would like to see aspen come back because it 

doesn’t burn as hot as other trees.  The BLM wants to promote the sub-alpine fir and Englemann Spruce 

regeneration.  If you have a smaller disturbance, a smaller footprint, your seed source is close by and it 

reseeds more quickly. 

 

Director Nania asked if once the fuel load is reduced by prescribed burns, will it be possible to allow a 

more natural fire.  Brian said yes, it would.   Julie asked if they have a good monitoring plan.  Brian said 

they have been collecting vegetative data and wildlife data including lynx and snowshoe hare.  They will 

soon begin collecting pre- and post-prescribed fire soil and water quality data as well.   

 

Director Sabrowski referenced the decrease in moisture in the fuel and asked if the BLM is confident the 

fire will not get extremely hot?  Brian said some of it probably will, but it will be a lot less intense than 

if it weren’t controlled.  Some burns will likely be done in the fall after a dusting snow.  We have an 

idea of the conditions we want for conducting prescribed burns.   Don asked if there was any movement 

with regard to legislation because of the severe droughts such that we can get in there and eliminate 

some of it?  Brian said, people are starting to realize there is a problem with this all across the west. 

 

Director Carroll asked Brian how they decide between fire treatment and mechanical removal.  If an 

area is 100% dead in a forest, do you treat the whole hillslope, or treat selectively to keep some 

structure?  Brian said they want to keep some structure.   

 

Brian said that in order to look at fire, insects, or disease, you need an objective and then that objective 

drives what you do.  John Kaminsky said it is the goal to do the minimum amount of intrusion that you 

can do to achieve your objective, which is field protection.  The idea is not to intervene, but to have 

people standing around ready to intervene if needed.   

 

Director Spann asked if this is an agency philosophy change.  Is there buy-in across the BLM agency to 

move these treatments forward?  Jon said the challenge now is to educate the public and get them out of 

the mindset that wilderness areas should be untouched by man. If we hadn’t been suppressing fires in 



 

4 

 

these wilderness areas, they would be touched by fire naturally.   Instead of 70 acres of dead stuff, we 

will have small patches of dead stuff.  The BLM will be doing more public outreach and talking about 

the benefits and risks of doing nothing, and those of taking a measured and managed approach.   

 

Brian said there is a huge risk associated with doing nothing.  When you see before and after photos 

from some of these large fires, you’d say you wish we’d decided to be more proactive as restoration is 

next to impossible with high intensity fires. 

 

Director Hazard said she is glad they followed up with downed, dead timber.  After years and years, that 

aspen will burn really hot.  She said burning smaller patches will make the fire easier to control, and it 

will likely be more acceptable to people.   

 

Sonja said that the UGRWCD has been participating in the same Upper Gunnison Shared Stewardship 

Council that Brian has also been participating in and she thanked him for serving on the technical 

committee for the Upper Gunnison fire risk assessment.  She plans to have presentations and discussion 

on watershed health and wildfire risk as part of the Upper Gunnison Basin Water Roundup conference 

on June 9-10. 

 

Director Nania said it would be interesting to try to integrate the vegetation management with some of 

the watershed sciences and erosional issues. She said that the District has looked at where we can re-wet 

areas.  She would like to discuss two other forms of natural fuel break with BLM as well.  

 

6. Break 

 

7. Basin Water Supply Update 

 

A basin water supply update was included in the board packet.  Bev Richards said that our area is in 

moderate drought and abnormally dry conditions, about the same as it has been recently.  Most of 

streamflow gages are normal to much above normal in Gunnison basin, however there was a spike in 

streamflows which occurred last week indicating that snow melt has begun.  Bev said that luckily the 

weather conditions over the past weekend slowed things down a bit.         

 

The 30-day-term precipitation forecast indicates that the area of Gunnison, Hinsdale and Saguache 

counties and much of the southern part of the State will have a 40 to 50% probability of below normal 

precipitation.  Temperatures are forecasted to be above normal for the same period. 

 

As of April 18, reservoir storage in the entire Gunnison Basin was at 58% of full. Taylor Park and Blue 

Mesa reservoirs are at 54% and 29% respectively. The forecasted inflows from April – July are at 67% 

of average.  

 



 

5 

 

Unregulated inflows to Lake Powell in March were 3.29 thousand acre feet and the released volume 

from Glen Canyon in March was 5.74 thousand acre feet.  End of March elevation and storage in Lake 

Powell were 3,523.13 acre feet and 24% live storage capacity. 

April to June anticipated releases from Lake Powell are 17.87 thousand acre feet. 

 

Lake San Cristobal is at an elevation of 8,994.43 feet.  Flows out of the reservoir are at 28.7 cfs and 

current flows at the gage at the Gateview gage are at 78.8 cfs.  

 

The Gunnison County Cloud Seeding program concluded April 15, 2022.  There were 21 storm events 

from November 21 – April 22.  Generator hours were 1,488, which includes the remote generator at 

Irwin.  Total snow water equivalent accumulation from seeded events was 131.7 inches. 

 

There was a severe dust event April 11 from widespread high winds.  Snowstorms quickly followed, so 

that dust is buried along with other layers of dust.   

 

Colorado Airborne Snow Measurement flights began April 19 on the Taylor and Est Rivers and will 

continue through June 

 

WRF hydro streamflow forecasting provided interim information with each snow-on flight.  Additional, 

snow-free flights and data work will be conducted this summer and fall 

 

Data workshops will take place with the CASM workgroup to explore different ways that ASO data can 

be used among all water stakeholders.   

 

RMBL came to us with a support letter for the National Ecological Observatory Network (NEON)  

Flight project which includes airborne surveying done during peak greenness to help inform water 

managers on the timing of snowmelt as it applies to certain vegetated areas.  Flights are done March thru 

October. 

 

Gap radar, located near Blue Mesa Reservoir, will be installed beginning in late July and should be fully 

operational by late September. 

 

Bev Richards attended a Colorado climate and drought webinar the other day and heard that la nina may 

stick around a third year and as a result, there will be above average risk of fires and low water storage 

again this year.  

 

Sonja Chavez said that she spoke with Garret Cammans, of North American Weather Consultants, and 

he indicated there were some issues this year working with a landowner on Black Mesa where there was 

a manually operated cloud seeding generator installed.  Garrett recommended installation of a remote 

generator like the one at Irwin.  Sonja is working with Garrett on potential cost.  The Bureau of 



 

6 

 

Reclamation is beginning to have an interest in cloud seeding, so the hope is that they might help fund 

some of the generator sites in the future.  Joellen Fonken said a few people in the public mentioned to 

her that we were no longer doing cloud seeding which is incorrect. She would like to have a 

cloudseeding article or press release, perhaps in the spring or fall.  There was support for this idea and 

Sonja indicated that staff would work on a newspaper article.  

 

John McClow said that Assistant Secretary Trujillo recommended that releases from Glen Canyon Dam 

to the lower basin states be reduced from 7.48 million acre feet to 7 million acre feet.  The seven basin 

states sent a letter concurring with that recommendation, and he expects to see that this year the release 

will be reduced to 7 million acre feet. 

 

 

8. General Manager, Staff and Committee Updates   

 

Treasurer’s Report:  Board Treasurer Bill Nesbitt said there is lots of talk of the Fed raising interest 

rates, he has heard .50% to a full 1%. Stay tuned.  

 

General Manager’s Update:  Sonja Chavez said she was sworn in as new member of the Water Quality 

Control Commission.  She was informed that she should recuse herself if there is board discussion of 

any of the Regulation #35 hearings included in her memo. There was no discussion. 

 

Sonja said that the District has submitted multiple grant applications since the March 22, 2022 meeting 

and has also written several letters in support of Congressionally Directed Spending (CDS) requests.  

Summary of grant applications in support of District activities: 

 

1) GOCO Grant Application in support of Wet Meadows ($158,100) 

2) CDS request in support of Wet Meadows ($640,000) 

3) U.S. FWS Call for Proposals in support of Wet Meadows ($955,158) 

4) WaterSMART Drought Contingency Planning (DCP) Grant ($140,480)* 

TOTAL: $1.9M 

 

Request for Board Action: The WaterSMART DCP grant application requires a board resolution in 

support of the proposed project.  Resolution 2022-02 is presented for the board’s approval in support of 

the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District Drought Contingency Plan (DCP). 

 

Stacy McPhail moved and Joellen Fonken seconded approval of Resolution 2022-02 in 

support of the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District Drought Contingency 

Plan (DCP). The motion carried.   

 



 

7 

 

Request for Board Action: The USGS is requesting $30,000 from the Upper Gunnison District as cash 

match for its High-Frequency Water Quality Sampling Project to Support Harmful Algal Bloom Studies 

in Blue Mesa Reservoir.   

 

Bill Nesbitt moved to support the High Frequency Water Quality Sampling Project to 

Support Harmful Algal Bloom Studies in 2022 by making a cash-match contribution of 

$30,000 this fiscal year. Rosemary Carroll seconded.  

 

Rosemary said she would like to see a presentation by USGS on the study both before and after 

the project.  

 

The motion carried.  

 

Wet Meadows Program Update:  Cheryl Cwelich asked if there were questions on her memo in the 

packets.  There were none.  

 

Education & Outreach Update: We received notification that the Rotary fishing tournament cancelled.  

They will return the $1500 the District provided for the event. Note that Sonja had incorrectly indicated 

a figure of a $150,000 instead of $1,500 in her memo in her memo. 

 

Taylor Local User’s Group Update:  April 7 Meeting Summary:  Director Sabrowski went over the 

April 7, 2022 memo from the board packet.  It is forecast to be an average year, with minimum storage 

of 70,000 acre feet at the end of October.  It was suggested at the March TLUG meeting that since it is 

an average year, we increase the year-end storage goal to 73,000 acre feet.  TLUG initially ran with that 

but then decided to use 70,000 acre feet in the final June flow recommendations as the minimum storage 

objective per the stipulation.  The group will still operate as conservatively as possible knowing the 

inflow projections from CBRFC regularly fall throughout the season in drought years.   

 

Suggested releases are as follows: 

 

April 16-30: 125 cfs 

May 1-15: 140 cfs 

May 16-31: 250 cfs 

June 1-15: 375 cfs (plan for five day flushing flow of 445) 

June 16-30: 350 cfs 

July 1:  350 cfs 

August 1: 300 cfs 

September 1: 300 cfs till sept 25, then to 250 cfs. 

October 1: 125 cfs 

 



 

8 

 

The next TLUG meeting will take place May 5, 2022 and will include Eric Knight’s May 5 projection.  

Don said he is worried about soil moisture, even though the prediction is for average flows and that the 

models take into account the soil moisture.  Hopefully the forecasted flows will be more accurate this 

year.  TLUG will strive to be as conservative as possible while still taking needs of all users into 

consideration. 

 

Director Spann said he hopes we have an average year.  He supports being as conservative as possible 

and temporarily storing/being conservative with releases. Everyone has been taking a hit in late August 

and September with regard to flows.  He said Don did a really good job at the TLUG meeting and he 

said that everyone is thinking about the best thing to do for all.  

 

Scientific Endeavors:  Rosemary Carroll said that ASO flights for April – June have been scheduled. 

Thursday was the first flight; they were delayed due to weather.  All of the Taylor and East Rivers were 

done in one day.  The total amount of snow estimated in the East River is 177,000 acre feet (uncertainty 

around numbers are168,000 - 186,000 acre feet).  Snow estimated in Taylor River Basin is 119,000 acre 

feet.   They also use a spectrometer to measure dust on snow. Dust anywhere in top 30 cm will 

accelerate melt.   

 

Rosemary said she serves on the advisory council of Hydrogen.  They have used the Taylor River as a 

proof of concept using complex physical hydrologic models and building machine learning around it, so 

the models are thousands of times faster.  Then they build around this a nice user interface for water 

managers, irrigators, etc., can go in and input “what ifs.”  Second phase. Once product finalized she’d 

like to have come and do a demonstration and show us what the model can do.   

 

Gunnison River Festival Update: Director Fonken said that every time we meet there is a desire from 

some group to add more activities.  The Gunnison Waves wanted to do their Surf Jam, but it would take 

too much time to put it on Saturday with the other events, so it will be on Sunday June 12 from 11:00 

a.m. -1:00 p.m.  They are trying not to compete with the Lake San Cristobal activities, but she feels 

these are two very different user groups and they will not compete.  The Lake Fork Valley Conservancy 

will put on some demos for SUPing, etc.  The following day, Monday, will be the ribbon cutting for the 

peninsula.  

 

Sonja said that she received a draft Inter-Governmental Agreement from the County related to the Cheat 

Grass coordinator position.  We are currently providing $4,200 in funding from the Wet Meadows 

NFWF grant and she reminded the District Board that she came to them earlier about funding on an 

annual basis. She was not aware that they would be asking supporters to enter into an IGA, she doesn’t 

wish to direct or control this position in any way, she would recommend that the Board not sign the IGA 

with current language that indicates possible legal action if the District Board was not able to provide 

funding in a given hear. She feels that this position was County led and that the responsibility should 

remain with the County and that if they’d like our help informally we should provide.  The District’s 



 

9 

 

only possible ask is that the Cheatgrass Coordinator try to participate in the Wet Meadows Program 

group meetings when possible to keep each other aware or potentially have a Cheatgrass subgroup as it 

relates to sage grouse, climate change, etc.   

 

9. Miscellaneous Matters 

 

Sonja reminded the board that the deadline to apply to fill upcoming board vacancies is approaching 

quickly.  Andy Spann, Stacy McPhail, Sara Bergstrom, and John Perusek are the directors whose board 

seats expire this year.  They have until May 27, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. to submit letters of interest to Judge 

Patrick. 

 

10. Citizens Comments 

 

Luke Mecklenburg said that he is new to the Colorado Attorney General’s office and is getting 

informed/caught up. 

 

11. Future Meetings 

 

TLUG meeting – May 5th at 10:00 a.m. 

Watershed Management Planning Committee Meeting – May 11 at 1:00 p.m. 

Gunnison Basin Roundtable meeting – May 16 at 3:00 p.m. 

UGRWCD Board Meeting – May 24th in Lake City 

Deadline for letters to Judge for UGRWCD board vacancies – May 27 at 5:00 p.m. 

May 30, Memorial Day, office closed 

Financial Audit by Paul Miller – May 30 – June 3 

UGRWCD Water Roundup at IBar Ranch – June 9 and 10. 

Gunnison River Festival 20th Anniversary – June 10 – 12. 

 

Bill Nesbitt requested that the Education and Outreach Committee schedule a meeting.   

 

Sonja said there will be a wildfire discussion and movie on April 27 at the Center for the Arts at 5:00 

p.m.  The Crested Butte Fire Protection District is sponsoring the event.  

 

12. Summary of Meeting Action Items 

 

-Deepen collaboration with BLM and others on watershed health, vegetation, fire management. 

-Bev will write an article about science of cloudseeding and UGRWCD Program. 

-Talk to Brian Stevens or Jon Kaminsky about serving on fire panels at conference. 

-Ask USGS to present on study on harmful algal blooms in Blue Mesa. 

-Invite Jeff Deems to give a presentation to us on ASO. 



 

10 

 

  

13. Adjournment 

   

Board President Michelle Pierce adjourned the April 25, 2022 meeting at 8:24 p.m. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

John Perusek, Secretary 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Michelle Pierce, President 

 

 



























































AGENDA ITEM 4
Legal and Legislative Matters



 

May 11, 2022 

This report summarizes bills of interest to the District introduced in the General Assembly in 
this session and reviewed by the Legislative Committee. The links connect to the full text of the 
bills as introduced. Updates from the April 15 Report are printed in red. When amendments to 
the bill as introduced are substantial, a link to the amendment is provided. 

HOUSE BILLS 

HB22-1012  CONCERNING HEALTHY FORESTS, AND, IN CONNECTION 
THEREWITH,  CREATING THE WILDFIRE MITIGATION AND RECOVERY GRANT 
PROGRAM. 

House sponsors:  Cutter and Valdez D., Lynch, Snyder  Senate sponsors:  Ginal and Lee, Story 

Wildfire Matters Review Committee. Section 1 of the bill creates the wildfire mitigation 
and recovery grant program (grant program) in the Colorado state forest service (forest service) 
to provide grants to help counties with forested areas prevent and recover from wildfire 
incidents and ensure that such efforts are undertaken in a manner that reduces the amount of 
carbon that enters the atmosphere. In expending grant money, a county, to the extent 
practicable, shall ensure that biomass that is removed from forests is recycled or disposed of in a 
manner that reduces the amount of carbon that enters the atmosphere.  

 The forest service shall administer the grant program and, subject to available 
appropriations, award grants out of money annually appropriated to the forest service for the 
grant program. The forest service shall review grant applications in consultation with the 
division of fire prevention and control in the department of public safety and with the Colorado 
forest health council in the department of natural resources.  

 The grant program is repealed, effective September 1, 2028. Before the repeal, the grant 
program is scheduled for a sunset review by the department of regulatory agencies.  

Section 2 schedules this review. 

Status: 01/12/22 Introduced in House, Assigned to Energy & Environment 
 02/17/22 Referred amended to Appropriations 
 04/27/22 House Third Reading Passed – No Amendments 
 05/06/22 Senate Second Reading Passed with Amendments 
 05/09/22 Senate Third Reading Passed 
 05/09/22 House Concurred with Senate Amendments – Passed 
 
UGRWCD Legislative Committee position:  MONITOR 

CWC State Affairs Committee position:  Monitor 

FINAL LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITY REPORT 

COLORADO GENERAL ASSEMBLY 

2022 REGULAR SESSION 

http://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022A/bills/2022a_1012_01.pdf


2 
 

HB22-1151 CONCERNING MEASURES TO INCENTIVIZE WATER-WISE 
LANDSCAPES, AND, IN CONNECTION THEREWITH, CREATING A STATE 
PROGRAMTO FINANCE THE VOLUNTARY REPLACEMENT OF IRRIGATED 
TURF. 

House Sponsors:  Catlin and Rogers  Senate Sponsors:  Bridges and Simpson 

The bill requires the Colorado water conservation board (board) to develop a statewide program 
to provide financial incentives for the voluntary replacement of irrigated turf with water-wise 
landscaping (turf replacement program). The bill defines water-wise landscaping as a water- 
and plant-management practice that emphasizes using plants with lower water needs. Local 
governments, certain districts, Native American tribes, and nonprofit organizations with their 
own turf replacement programs may apply to the board for money to help finance their turf 
replacement programs. The board will contract with one or more third parties to administer one 
or more turf replacement programs in areas where local turf replacement programs do not exist. 

Amended to include language encouraging defensible space to reduce wildfire risk; modify 
funding language. 

Status: 02/04/2022   Introduced in House, Assigned to Agriculture, Livestock & Water 
 02/28/2022   Refer amended to Appropriations 
 05/03/2022 Committee on Appropriations Refer Amended to House  
 Committee of the Whole 
 05/03/2022 House Second Reading Special Order - Passed with Amendments -  
 05/04/2022 House Third Reading Passed - No Amendments 
 05/04/2022 Introduced In Senate - Assigned to Appropriations 
 05/06/2022 Senate Committee on Appropriations Refer Amended to Senate  
 Committee of the Whole 
 05/06/2022 Senate Second Reading - Passed with Amendments 
 05/09/2022 Senate Third Reading Passed - No Amendments 
 05/10/2022 House Considered Senate Amendments - Result was to Concur - Repass 

UGRWCD Legislative Committee position:  SUPPORT 

CWC State Affairs Committee position:  Support 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022A/bills/2022a_1151_01.pdf


3 
 

SENATE BILLS 

SB22-114 CONCERNING FIRE SUPPRESSION PONDS. 

Section 1 of the bill makes legislative findings and declarations.  

Section 2 allows a board of county commissioners (board) to apply to the state engineer for the 
designation of a pond as a fire suppression pond. The director of the division of fire prevention 
and control (director) in the department of public safety is required to promulgate rules to 
establish criteria for boards, in consultation with fire protection districts, to use to identify and 
evaluate potential fire suppression ponds. For each pond that is identified and under 
consideration as a potential fire suppression pond, a board must provide notice of such fact to 
the state engineer and to interested parties included in the substitute water supply plan 
notification list established for the water division in which the pond is located. Section 2 also 
prohibits the state engineer from draining any pond: !  

• While the pond is under consideration for designation as a fire suppression pond;   
• If the state engineer has designated the pond as a fire suppression pond;   
• On and after the effective date of the bill, and until the date upon which the director 

promulgates rules, with exceptions.  
Section 2 also states that a fire suppression pond and the water associated with it: 

• Are not considered a water right;  
• Do not have a priority for the purpose of determining water rights; and  
• May not be adjudicated as a water right.  

 
Section 3 requires the state engineer to review applications received from boards and, at the 
state engineer's discretion, designate ponds as fire suppression ponds. An application is 
presumed to be approved if the state engineer does not respond to the application within 63 
days after the application is received by the state engineer. The state engineer may not designate 
any pond as a fire suppression pond unless the pond existed as of January 1, 1975. Section 3 also 
allows the state engineer to impose reasonable requirements on a board as a condition of 
designating a pond as a fire suppression pond and requires a board and a fire protection district 
to inspect a fire suppression pond at least annually. The designation of a pond as a fire 
suppression pond expires 20 years after the date of the designation. Before the expiration, the 
board and the fire protection district must perform a needs assessment of the pond. If the needs 
assessment demonstrates that the pond is in compliance with criteria established in the 
director's rules, the board and fire protection district shall notify the state engineer of such fact, 
and the state engineer shall redesignate the pond as a fire suppression pond. If the needs 
assessment demonstrates that the pond is not in compliance with the criteria, the board and fire 
protection district may either:  

• Notify the state engineer that the designation of the pond as a fire suppression pond 
should be rescinded or allowed to expire; or  

• Provide to the state engineer a plan and a timeline for bringing the pond back into 
compliance with such criteria.  
 

Section 4 states that the designation of fire suppression ponds by the state engineer does not 
cause material injury to vested water rights. 
Amended to add and redefine criteria.  
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/leg.colorado.gov/2022A/amendments/SB114_L.003.pdf  

http://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022A/bills/2022a_114_01.pdf
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/leg.colorado.gov/2022A/amendments/SB114_L.003.pdf


4 
 

 
Status: 02/03/2022  Introduced in Senate, Assigned to Agriculture & Natural Resources 
 03/03/2022  Refer amended to Appropriations 
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/leg.colorado.gov/2022A/amendments/SB114_L.003.pd 
 03/18/2022  Refer amended to Senate Committee of the Whole 
 03/30/2022  Second reading passed with amendments 
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/leg.colorado.gov/2022A/amendments/SB114_L.009.pdf 
 04/01/2022  Third reading passed with amendments 
 04/01/2022  Introduced in House – Assigned to Agriculture, Livestock & Water 
 04/11/2022  Refer amended to Appropriations 
 05/02/2022 House Committee on Appropriations Refer Amended to House  
 Committee of the Whole 
 05/03/2022 House Second Reading Special Order - Passed with Amendments  
 05/10/2022 House Third Reading Passed - No Amendments 
 05/10/2022 Senate Considered House Amendments - Result was to Concur – Repass 
http://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022A/bills/2022a_114_rer.pdf 
 
UGRWCD Legislative Committee position:  SUPPORT 
 
CWC State Affairs Committee position:  04/11/2022 Motion to support fails. No position. 
 
SB22-115  CONCERNING CLARIFYING CERTAIN TERMS AS THE TERMS RELATE 
TO A LANDOWNER'S LIABILITY. 
 
Senate sponsors:  Jaquez Lewis and Gardner       House sponsors:  Soper and Tipper 
 
The bill clarifies the meaning of terms related to landowner liability and declares that the 
Colorado court of appeals and supreme court decisions in Rocky Mountain Planned 
Parenthood, Inc. v. Wagner should not be relied upon to the extent that those decisions 
determined:  

• The foreseeability of third-party criminal conduct based upon whether the goods or 
services offered by a landowner are controversial; and  

• That a landowner could be held liable as a substantial factor in causing harm without 
considering whether a third-party criminal act was the predominant cause of that harm. 

 
Status: 02/03/2022  Introduced in Senate, Assigned to Judiciary 
 02/16/2022 Refer to Consent Calendar Senate Committee of the Whole 
 02/22/2022 Senate Second Reading Passed – No Amendments 
 02/23/2022 Senate Third Reading Passed – No Amendments 
 02/23/2022 Introduced in House – Assigned to Judiciary 
 03/09/2022 Refer Amended to House Committee of the Whole 
 03/15/2022 House Second Reading Passed with Amendments 
 03/16/2022 House Third Reading Passed – No Amendments 
 03/18/2022 Senate considered House amendments; concur; repass 
 04/07/2022 Governor signed 
 
UGRWCD Legislative Committee position:  SUPPORT 

https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/leg.colorado.gov/2022A/amendments/SB114_L.003.pd
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/leg.colorado.gov/2022A/amendments/SB114_L.009.pdf
http://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022A/bills/2022a_114_rer.pdf
https://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022A/bills/2022a_115_01.pdf


5 
 

 
CWC State Affairs Committee position:  Support 
 
SB22-029  CONCERNING WATER SPECULATION IN THE STATE 
 
Senate sponsors:  Coram and Donovan, Bridges, Jaquez Lewis   House sponsor:  McCormick 
 
Water Resources Review Committee. Section 1 of the bill prohibits a purchaser of 
agricultural water rights that are represented by shares in a mutual ditch company from 
engaging in investment water speculation. Investment water speculation is the purchase of 
agricultural water rights that are represented by shares in a mutual ditch company in the state 
with the intent, at the time of purchase, to profit from an increase in the water's value in a 
subsequent transaction or by receiving payment from another person for nonuse of all or a 
portion of the water subject to the water right. 
 On or after January 1, 2023, the state engineer or the state engineer's designee (state 
engineer) may investigate complaints of investment water speculation. If a purchaser holds, or 
by virtue of a proposed sale or transfer, will hold at least a minimum percent of the shares in a 
mutual ditch company, about which minimum percent the mutual ditch company must 
determine and notify the state engineer on or before December 31, 2022, there is a rebuttable 
presumption that the purchaser is engaged in investment water speculation. The state engineer 
may fine a purchaser up to $10,000 for a violation and require, for a period of up to 2 years after 
a fine has been imposed, that any sale or transfer of shares in a mutual ditch company to the 
purchaser be subject to approval by the state engineer.  
 If the state engineer believes that a complaint is frivolous or was filed for the purpose of 
harassing a seller or purchaser, the state engineer may refer the matter to the attorney general's 
office for the attorney general or the attorney general's designee (attorney general) to investigate 
and, if the attorney general determines that enforcement is warranted, bring a civil action in a 
court of competent jurisdiction alleging the complaint is frivolous or was filed for the purpose of 
harassment. If the attorney general prevails in the civil action, the court may fine a complainant 
up to $1,000, prohibit the complainant from filing any complaints alleging investment water 
speculation for up to one year, and grant attorney fees and court costs.  
 Section 2 requires the board of directors of a mutual ditch company to determine the 
minimum percent of agricultural water rights held by all of the shareholders in the mutual ditch 
company that a purchaser holds or, by virtue of the sale or transfer of shares in the mutual ditch 
company, will hold that creates a rebuttable presumption that the purchaser is engaging in 
investment water speculation. 
 Section 3 authorizes the attorney general to bring a civil action against a complainant if 
the state engineer refers the matter to the attorney general.  
 
Status:  01/12/2022  Introduced in Senate, Assigned to Agriculture & Natural Resources 
 Senator Donovan has created a “strike below” amendment that rewrites the bill text 
 entirely. Drafts have not been released. It will be heard by Senate Agriculture & Natural 
 Resources on April 21. 
04/21/2022 Senate Committee on Agriculture & Natural Resources Postponed Indefinitely 
UGRWCD Legislative Committee position:  OPPOSE 
 
CWC State Affairs Committee position:  04/04/2022 Oppose 
 

http://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022A/bills/2022a_029_01.pdf


6 
 

 
SB22-126  CONCERNING A REQUIREMENT THAT THE COLORADO WATER  
CONSERVATION BOARD PRIORITIZE WATER STORAGE IN THE SOUTH PLATTE 
RIVER BASIN IN CHOOSING PROJECTS TO FINANCE WITH MONEY FROM THE 
COLORADO WATER CONSERVATION BOARD CONSTRUCTION FUND. 
 
Senate Sponsors:  Sonnenberg and Donovan, Kirkmeyer, Lundeen, Scott, Simpson,Woodward. 
 
House sponsor:  Holtorf 
 
The Colorado water conservation board (board) finances water projects throughout the state. 
Current law requires the board to prioritize projects that will increase the beneficial 
consumptive use of Colorado's undeveloped compact-entitled waters. The bill includes within 
this priority a specific priority for projects that increase or improve water storage in the South 
Platte river basin as a means of increasing the beneficial consumptive use of undeveloped water 
entitled under the South Platte river compact and in a manner that reduces reliance on 
transmountain diversions. 
Amended to add language to legislative declaration; amends the priority language to direct 
funding priority to “projects that will increase the beneficial consumptive use of Colorado's 
undeveloped compact-entitled waters, including the South Platte River.” 
 
Status:  02/04/2022  Introduced in Senate, Assigned to Agriculture & Natural Resources 
 02/24/2022 Refer Amended – Consent Calendar to Senate Committee of the Whole 
 03/01/2022 Senate Second Reading Laid over to 03/07/2022 – No Amendments 
 03/07/2022 Senate Second Reading Laid over to 03/14/2022 – No Amendments 
 03/14/2022 Senate Second Reading Laid over to 03/21/2022 – No Amendments 
 03/21/2022 Second Reading passed with amendments. 
 03/22/2022 Third reading passed – No Amendments 
 03/23/2022 Introduced in House – Assigned to Agriculture, Livestock &Water 
 03/28/2022 Committee on Agriculture, Livestock & Water – postpone indefinitely. 
 
UGRWCD Legislative Committee position:   OPPOSE 
 
CWC State Affairs Committee position: 03/28/2022 Oppose 

http://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022A/bills/2022a_126_01.pdf


 

 

Policy Regarding Endorsements by Directors 

Unless a Director has been appointed by the Board of Directors to represent the District in 

another organization, a Director may not identify in any way as a representative of the District 

without prior approval from the Board. 

 

Adopted by the Board of Directors at a regular meeting on May 24, 2022. 



AGENDA ITEM 5
Jeff Derry, Dust on Snow in San Juan Basin



AGENDA ITEM 6 
Basin Water Supply Report



1 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: UGRWCD Board Members 
 
FROM: Beverly Richards, Water Resource Specialist 

 
DATE: May 13, 2022 

 
SUBJECT: Basin Water Supply Information 
 

The information supplied as part of this memorandum is a monthly feature and includes information about 
drought conditions in the basin, reservoir storage, reservoir operations, dust on snow events, and the Upper 
Gunnison Cloudseeding Program.   
 
Drought Conditions: 
 
According to the Drought Monitor at drought.gov as of May 3, 2022, drought conditions have increased in 
severity slightly with a total of 48% of the state in Severe (D2) to Exceptional (D4) conditions which is an  
increase from the April report, particularly in the severe category.  Based on current forecasts Exceptional 
drought conditions could increase in severity over the next few months, particularly in the southern part of 
the State.  
 

 
 
 
 
 



2 

Earlier this week a red flag warning was issued by the National Weather Service (May 10,2022).  The 
warning stated that “extremely critical fire weather was expected for much of this week, especially in the 
southern part of the state.”  The figure below shows the extent of the warning. 
 

 
National Weather Service - May 10, 2022 

Drought Conditions in Hinsdale County and Surrounding Areas 

Drought conditions in Hinsdale County have remained basically the same since March.  As of May 3, 
2022, 40% of the county is experiencing Moderate (D1) and 60% is experiencing Severe (D2) drought 
conditions, which is a slight increase in the severe category.  The focus this month is on Hinsdale County 
and the surrounding area.  Below is a table and a map from the drought monitor which outlines drought 
conditions in Hinsdale County and several surrounding counties.  These include the Abnormally Dry (D0) 
to Exceptional (D4) categories. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 

Drought Conditions - Hinsdale and Surrounding 

County D0 D1 D2 D3 D4 

Hinsdale 0 40.38 59.62 0 0 
Ouray 0 54.40 45.60 0 0 
San Juan 0 77.53 22.42 0 0 
La Plata 0 78.29 21.71 0 0 
Archuleta 0 81.20 18.80 0 0 
Mineral 0 42.78 57.22 0 0 
Saguache 0 .97 99.03 0 0 

 

 

As you can see from the Drought Monitor map and the amounts in the table, conditions in Hinsdale County 
and surrounding counties to the east are faring about the same, with a good portion experiencing moderate 
to severe conditions.  Saguache County and others to the west are experiencing severe conditions 
throughout the entire county.  Predictions are that the extreme and exceptional conditions that currently 
exist in the southeastern corner of the state will likely increase in area and could move into the 
southwestern area. This is reflected in the map below which shows what the long-term drought conditions 



4 

may look like without precipitation and that many areas may return to extreme and exceptional drought 
conditions. 

 

Precipitation  

According to the Colorado Climate Center Drought Update, May 10, 2022, the 7-day outlook is that there 
will be no precipitation for the entire state, as shown in the figure below where the white represents no 
precipitation.  The 8-14-day outlook calls for below normal precipitation and above normal temperatures, 
and there is a 30-40% chance that this will continue through May, June and July.  Such a forecast will 
likely affect drought conditions and soil moisture conditions.  Hopefully some relief will come with 
monsoon rains in July and August. 



5 

 

7-Day Precipitation Forecast - Colorado Climate Center 

Precipitation in Hinsdale County and the surrounding areas for the last 30 days has ranged from no 
precipitation to 75% of normal.  The is shown in the figure provided below and the conditions are much the 
same for the surrounding areas particularly to the south.  Some southwestern areas of the state received 
very little precipitation in the past 30 days, as shown in the darker brown areas in the map.  

 



6 

The precipitation forecast is a good indication that evaporative demand will also be high. Below are two 
images that show what the Evaporative Demand Drought Index will look like for this area through the rest 
of May and into the first two weeks into June.  These forecasts show that much of the area to the east and 
south of Hinsdale County will experience ED4 conditions in the next two weeks and that this area will 
expand greatly within the next four weeks.  The Colorado Climate Center is also predicting these 
conditions along with no precipitation and warmer temperatures will likely result in faster run-off and in 
many areas lower run-off due to already existing soil moisture conditions.  Snowpack peaked around the 
second week of April, with percent of normal close to the median for most basins. Melting rates have been 
much faster than typical. The San Juan basin ended the month at 54% of average due to high melt rates. 

 

Dust on Snow (Center for Snow and Avalanche Studies) 

To add to all the other dire forecasts, we were provided an update from the Center for Snow and Avalanche 
Studies about the Colorado Dust-on-Snow (CODOS) program.  As of May 10, conditions are still windy 
and warm with dust events happening daily.  On May 8, a massive dust event occurred not only in southern 
and central Colorado, but also in Steamboat Springs and on into Nebraska.   

The forecast calls for more blowing dust and no precipitation for at least the next seven days.  
Measurements taken at the Swamp Angel site on May 5 showed 14.3” of snow water equivalent (SWE), 
and on May 10 the measurement was 8.7” (SWE).  This equates to a loss of approximately 1.1” per day.  
They reported that their higher monitoring site at an elevation of 12,186 feet is losing snow at a fast pace as 
well. 

 



7 

Streamflow 

Predictions from the Colorado Climate Center Update, May 10, 2022, also indicated that many streams 
around Hinsdale County may have already peaked from runoff.  In some cases, this is two to three weeks 
early.  Below is a table with various streamflows; includes current, 10-days ago, and historical average. 

 

Station Name May 2 (cfs) May 12 (cfs) Historical 
Average (cfs) Comments 

Lake Fork San Miguel River 
Abv Trout Lake 14 27 14 May have peaked 

on 5.10 at 38.7 cfs 
Lake Fork blw Lake San 
Cristobal 166 309 134 May have peaked 

on 5/8 at 413 cfs 
Henson Creek at Lake City 160 312 128 Peaked on 5/7 at 

513 cfs 
Lake Fork at Gateview 287 632 435 May have peaked 

on 5/8 at 776 cfs 
Animas River blw Silverton 550 764 558 Peaked on 5/7 at 

1,140 cfs 
Animas River at Silverton 273 357 240 Peaked on 5/7 at 

900 cfs 
Animas River At Howardsville 254 346 200 Peaked on 5/7 at 

635 cfs 
Rio Grande at 30-Mile Bridge 
near Creede 779 656 418 Releases from Rio 

Grande Dam 
Rio Grande at Wagon Wheel 
Gap 1,770 1,610 1,243 Peaked on 5/9 at 

2,470 cfs 

Flows farther up in the basin have also increased exponentially since May 2.  This information is provided 
in the following table but does not include observations about peak as measurements are still fluctuating in 
the hourly average at these sites. 

 

Station Name May 2 (cfs) May 12 (cfs) Historical 
Average (cfs) 

Gunnison River near Gunnison 822 2,080 1,540 
Gunnison River at Gunnison Whitewater Park 805 1,970 1,272 
Tomichi Creek at Sargent’s 107 229 164 
Tomichi Creek at Gunnison 81 286 325 
Taylor River at Taylor Park 95 278 201 
Taylor River blw Taylor Park 127 140 189 
Slate River abv Baxter Gulch 307 836 402 
East River blw Cement Creek 578 1,470 788 
East River at Almont 822 1,360 898 



8 

Reservoir Storage 

As of May 10, current reservoir storage in the entire Gunnison Basin is at 64% of full.  The reservoirs in 
the Upper Gunnison Basin, Taylor and Blue Mesa, are at 58% and 33% respectively.  This is reflected in 
the tea-cup diagram below.  

 

Aspinall Unit Operations 

This update was provided by the Bureau of Reclamation and is dated May 9, 2022.   

The Upper Gunnison snowpack peaked at 92% of average in early April and the current snowpack is 57% 
of average for this date.  The snow accumulation was well below the average for April.  The BOR is 
projecting that unregulated inflow into Blue Mesa for April-July is 490,000 acre-feet which is 77% of 
average unregulated inflow.  The projected maximum fill for Blue Mesa is 447,000 acre-feet which is 53% 
of average and the end of year (December 31, 2022) content is projected to be 370,000 or 44% of average, 
which is an increase from previous projections.  These numbers are based upon the May 1 forecast from 
the Colorado Basin River Forecast Center (CBRFC).   

This puts the hydrologic year-type category at moderately dry and provides for peak flows at the Gunnison 
River at Whitewater gage of 5,000 cfs and in the Black Canyon at 2,400 cfs for the duration of one day as 
per Aspinall operations. Current inflows into Blue Mesa are at 2,600 cfs and releases from Crystal 
Reservoir are at 1,400 cfs.  The Gunnison Tunnel is currently diverting at the rate 1,030 cfs. 

 

 



9 

Taylor Park Reservoir Operations: 

The Bureau of Reclamation provided an update on Taylor Park Reservoir operations using the May 1 
forecast from the CBRFC.  This forecast indicated that there will be 90,000 acre-feet of runoff flowing into 
the reservoir which is 96% of average.  This forecast puts the year type in the Average Year category.  
Based on this year type, there is a requirement for a spring peak release of 445 cfs for 5 days which will 
occur in June. 

Through discussions with the Taylor Local Users Group, releases from Taylor Park Reservoir went up to 
140 cfs beginning May 1 and will increase to 350 cfs beginning in June.  Below is the proposed 
preliminary operations plan following the May 5 TLUG meeting: 

 
o May 1-15: 140 
o May 16-31:  250 cfs 
o June 1-15:  350 cfs (June 1 go to 350 cfs, June 2-6 at 445 cfs, June 7 drop to 400, June 8 to 

350 cfs) 
o June 16-30: 350 cfs 
o July 1-15:  350 cfs  
o July 16-31: 325 cfs (includes change to 300 cfs on July 24) 
o August 1- 15:  300 cfs 
o August 16-31: 250 cfs 
o September 1-15: 250 
o September 16-30:  200 cfs 
o October 1-15:  100 cfs (Start ramping down by 25 cfs on Oct 1 so that on October 4 we are 

at 100 cfs) 
o October 16-31: 91 cfs  

 
Based on this proposed operations plan, the end of October storage in the reservoir is projected to be 
72,600 acre-feet which is above the target for the average year category and is approximately 90% of 
average live  storage.  

The next TLUG meeting is scheduled for June 7, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. 

Lake San Cristobal Update: 

The current elevation (May 12) for Lake San Cristobal is 8994.88 feet which is up slightly from the April  
reading of 8,994.43.  The flows out of the reservoir are currently at 309 cfs and the current flows at the 
Lake Fork at Gateview are 632 cfs.  

Lake Powell Update: 
 
The current update was provided on May 3, 2022, on the Glen Canyon Dam Operations page provided by the 
Bureau of Reclamation (BOR).   
 
The BOR announced two separate urgent drought response actions that may help Lake Powell over the next 12 
months (May 2022-April 2023).  This could mean up to 1 million acre-feet (maf) of water in Lake Powell due to 
increased releases into the lake from upstream reservoirs and less releases from the lake to downstream.  These are 
outline below: 



10 

 
• Under a Drought Contingency Plan adopted in 2019, approximately 500 thousand acre-feet (kaf) of 

water will come from Flaming Gorge Reservoir, located approximately 455 river miles upstream of 
Lake Powell. 

• Another 480 kaf will be left in Lake Powell by reducing Glen Canyon Dam’s annual release 
volume from 7.48 maf to 7.0 maf, as outlined in the 2007 Interim Guidelines. 

The unregulated inflow volume to Lake Powell during March was 329 kaf which is 55% of average.  The 
release volume for March was 574 kaf.  The end of March elevation at Lake Powell was 3523.13 feet 
which is 177 feet from full pool. The storage amount in the lake at the end of March was 5.81 maf which is 
24% of live capacity.  Projections are that 6.31 maf (66% of average) of unregulated inflow will flow into 
the lake and the end water year of 2022 elevation could range from 3,511.71 (minimum) and 3,551.80 
(maximum).  

At the beginning of water year 2022, the total system storage in the Colorado River basin was 22.8 maf 
which is 38% of the total system capacity.  This is a decrease of  approximately 6 maf over the total storage 
that was in the system at the beginning of water year 2021.  Based on the current inflow forecasts, the 
current projected end of year storage is 20.07 maf which is 34% of the total system capacity.   

Cloudseeding Report (North American Weather Consultants; NAWC) & SWE in the Snowpack 
(final report 2021-2022 season): 

According to the North American Weather Consultants report dated April 18, 2022, the weather patten for 
the first two weeks of the month of April (and the final two weeks of the current program)  included a track 
that largely focused north of the area.  Two stronger storms did track south however, bringing the 
opportunity for two seeding events and is shown in the graph provided below.  Values at this time of year 
are often variable as accounting must include snow melt that has already occurred.  The totals for the 2021-
2022 program was 21 seeded storm events and 1,488.50 generator hours which included the remote 
generator at Lake Irwin.  The new generator installed at Black Mesa will likely be changed to a remote 
generator in the future due to access issues. 

 
Graph of Operations to date - 2021-2022 



11 

The table below shows snow water equivalent for the water year as of April 18, 2022 at the five Blue Mesa 
SNOTEL sites.  

  

  Measurement Site Snow Water Equivalent (inch) Water Year Precipitation (inch) 
4-18-22 Percent of Average 4-18-22 Percent of Average 

Butte 12.3 100 14.9 94 
Schofield Pass 37.2 113 38.3 123 

Park Cone 11.3 120 13.6 117 
Porphyry Creek 15.7 105 18.8 113 

Slumgullion 9.7 68 11.6 79 
Upper Gunnison 

Basin %  101  105 

As of April 18, 2022, snow water equivalent in the Upper Gunnison Basin was above normal, with a basin-
wide average of 101%.  Water year precipitation was also above normal, at an average of 105%.  The 
District will receive NAWC’s final report sometime this summer and staff is currently working on an 
article for the newspaper about this program. 

Do your Rain Dance! 



AGENDA ITEM 7
Treasurer’s Report



AGENDA ITEM 7
General Manager and Committee Updates



MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:   UGRWCD Board Members  

FROM:  Sonja Chavez, General Manager 

DATE:  May 16, 2022  

SUBJECT:  General Manager, Committee, and Staff Updates 

 

I. Treasurer’s Report (Director Nesbitt) 

 

II. General Manager’s Update 

 

Miscellaneous: 

A. Prehearing Conference Regulation #35  

 

Background: The Town of Crested Butte (Town), Gunnison County (County), Coal Creek 

Watershed Coalition (CCWC), High Country Conservation Advocates (HCCA), 

Northwest Colorado Council of Governments Water Quality/Quantity Committee (QQ) 

and Upper Gunnison River District submitted a Responsive Prehearing Statement as the 

“Upper Gunnison Parties” to the Water Quality Control Commission”. The following two 

Regulation #35 Rulemaking water quality issues are being addressed:   

1) The proposal submitted by Homestake Mining Company (HMC) (as provided in the 

April Board packet) to extend the temporary modification of the uranium water supply 

standard applied to Marshall Creek: The District was not in favor of having water 

supply use standards for surface waters suitable for potable water supply removed as 

there are existing water supply uses. There remains potential for future water supply 

use; and the removal of a standard in order to avoid reclamation obligations appears to 

be inconsistent with the Water Quality Control Act. 

2) The request of Mt. Emmons Mining Company’s (MEMC) to extend the chronic 

cadmium temporary modification applied to Coal Creek (April, May, and June) until 

12/31/27, to delete the seasonal temporary modification for copper, and protect the 

assimilative capacity in Coal Creek by renewing the Colorado Discharge Permit 

System (CDPS) for Keystone Mine. Coal Creek is attaining the acute aquatic life 

standard and the Keystone Mine WTP no longer has predicted compliance issues due 

to on-site improvements and recent reclamation work.  

 

Recent Activity: Upper Gunnison Parties participated in a Prehearing Conference with the 

Water Quality Control Division on May 17th, 2022. At the time of preparation of this 

memorandum, the meeting had not taken place. A verbal update will be given to the Board 

by Director Nania. 

 



B. Grant Applications Pending & Congressionally Directed Spending Requests 

The District has submitted multiple grant applications since the March regular board 

meeting and has written several letters in support of Congressionally Directed Spending 

(CDS) requests. Following is a summary of those funding requests and current status: 

 

Summary of previous grant applications in support of District activities:  

1) GOCO Grant Application in support of Wet Meadows ($158,100) - TBD 

2) CDS request in support of Wet Meadows ($1M) - TBD 

3) U.S. FWS Sagebrush Ecosystem Grant ($955,158 $273,350) – Awarded 

4) WaterSMART Drought Contingency Planning (DCP) Grant ($140,480)* - TBD 

TOTAL REQUESTS: $1.57M 

Summary of current grant applications in progress: 

1) Community Funding Partnership Program 2022.1 – Upper Gunnison Basin 2022 

Bundled Grant Application Request 

2) Community Funding Partnership Program 2022.2 – Blue Mesa Reservoir HABs 

High Frequency Sampling Study 

Potential future grant applications: 

1) Colorado Department of Public Health & Environment (CDPHE) – Source Water 

Protection Planning grant request in support of Upper Gunnison Basin 

municipalities. 

 

C. Contracting Building Maintenance – Roof Repair 

The UGRWCD has released a request for bids for repair of the Spencer Avenue Condo 

Association roof. In support of that effort, staff is requesting that: 

 

BOARD ACTION RECOMMENDED: Authorize the General Manager to enter into contract 

with the most qualified, reliable and financially reasonable project bidder for the repair or 

replacement of the condominium roof. 

 

Regular Updates: 

 

D. Watershed Management Planning (WMP) Committee Update (Director McPhail) 

The District has completed a draft request for bids for the wetland assessment and mapping 

update project which we will obtain general counsel review. We anticipate selecting the most 

qualified, reliable and financially reasonable contractor and presenting to the board at the 

June meeting. 

 

E. Wet Meadows Update (Cheryl Cwelich, Watershed Program Coordinator) 

See Wet Meadows Program update memorandum from Cheryl (Watershed Program 

Coordinator). Exhibit A. 

 



F. Taylor Local Users Group (Director Sabrowski) – Verbal Update will be given by 

Director Sabrowski.  Draft meeting minutes attached as Exhibit B.  

 

G. Education and Outreach Update (Director Nesbitt) 

A meeting of the Education Committee was held on May 6, 2022. A copy of the meeting 

minutes is attached as Exhibit C. 

 

H. Scientific Endeavors Update (Director Carroll) 

 

I. Gunnison Basin Roundtable (General Manager) 

 

As stated at the March board meeting, Director Nania was offering to step down from her 

duties as UGRWCD Representative on the Gunnison Basin Roundtable if there were other 

board members interested in the position due to difficulties in attending GBRT meetings 

recently as a result of her recent increase in workload at HCCA with high priority projects. 

Given that no UGRWCD Board members stepped forward, the General Manager and 

General Counsel are recommending that the Board appoint General Manager Chavez to 

the GBRT UGRWCD representative seat to ensure that the interests of the Upper 

Gunnison basin are represented.  General Manager Chavez can then step down from her 

seat as At-Large Representative which can be filled by another Gunnison Basin 

constituent. 

 

BOARD ACTION RECOMMENDED: Provide a letter of appointment for General 

Manager Chavez to the GBRT to fill the UGRWCD Representative seat.  

 

J. Gunnison River Festival Update (Director Fonken) 

 

 

 



1 

Wet Meadows Program Memo_05.06.22.CC 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: UGRWCD Board of Directors 

FROM: Cheryl Cwelich, Watershed Program Coordinator 

DATE: May 11, 2022  

SUBJECT: Wet Meadows Program Update (May) 

During the month of May, the following activities have commenced or been completed in the 

Gunnison Basin Wet Meadows & Riparian Restoration Collaborative (GBWMRRC): 

Notable Activities Completed or in Progress 

• Completed initial Wet Meadow site assessments and layout at:

o Chance Gulch

o Long Gulch

o Cottonwood Gulch

o West Flat Top

o Horn Gulch

o Cerro

o Bohr Flats

o Mountain Island Ranch

o Upper Wolf Creek

• Submitted interim reimbursement request for NFWF EasyGrant #66627 of $174,989.25

• Awarded US Fish & Wildlife Service (FWS) Sagebrush Ecosystem grant of $273,350

Exhibit A

Sue
Highlight



1 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:  UGRWCD Board Members 

FROM: Taylor Local Users Group (TLUG) 

DATE: May 5, 2022 

SUBJECT: Taylor Local Users Group Meeting Notes 

A TLUG meeting was held on Thursday, May 5, 2022 in-person and via Zoom 
video/teleconference. Attending the meeting were the following TLUG members: 

Ryan Birdsey, representative for flat water recreation interests 
Ernie Cockrell, representative for Taylor Placer 
Pete Dunda, representative for property owners 
Roark Kiklevich, representative for wade fishing interests (via Zoom) 
Don Sabrowski, UGRWCD Board representative and TLUG Chair 
Mark Schumacher, representative for rafting/boating interests  

Andy Spann, representative for irrigation interests, was absent. 

Also present:  Tara Allman (WCU Wilderness Pursuits); Jim Beasley (Wapiti 
Canyon Ranch); Rory N. Birdsey (Taylor Reservoir); John Bocchino (Riffle and 
Rise LLC); Dan Brauch (CO Parks and Wildlife); Dustin Brown (Scenic River 
Rafting); Reece Carpenter ((BOR); Ryan Christensen (BOR); Steve Cook (Crystal 
Creek HOA), Jeffrey Deems (Airborne Snow Observatories); Matt Feier (Taylor 
River Hydro LLC); Doug Forshagen (Crystal Creek HOA); Bill Gallenbeck (Taylor 
Dam Operator for UVWUA); David Gochis (University/National Center for 
Atmospheric Research-UCAR/NCAR); Erik Knight (BOR); Elliott Manning 
(Eleven Anglers); Ben Riedel (Wilder); Dirk Schumacher (Three Rivers Resort);  
Jay Whitacre (Irwin Guides) and Jason White (Crested Butte Anglers) 

UGRWCD Staff: Sonja Chavez, Cheryl Cwelich; Beverly Richards, Jill Steele 
and Sue Uerling   

Exhibit B

Sue
Highlight



2 
 

Chair Don Sabrowski called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m. Don noted that 
there had been a request to change TLUG process for obtaining “Citizen 
Comments” at the beginning of the meeting. Chairman Sabrowski denied that 
request and reminded the public that if they had input on releases or other 
operations, they should contact their TLUG representative prior to the 
meetings, or they are welcome to contact him or General Manager Sonja 
Chavez.  Chairman Sabrowski also asked for a roll call of all TLUG members 
and interested parties present either in person or on the Zoom teleconference.  
There were 31 people in attendance. 
 
Chair Sabrowski asked if there were any changes or additions to the April 7th 
Meeting Summary.  Ryan Birdsey noted that he wanted to provide further 
clarification for his family, stating he is the representative for flat water 
recreation interests and his younger brother, Rory J. Birdsey, is his alternate.  
He said his father, Rory Birdsey, also serves as the alternate representative for 
Taylor Placer. Ryan also noted that the April minutes had the incorrect name 
for Bill Gallenbeck (not Hollenbeck), the Taylor Dam operator for the UVWUA. 
Dan Brauch noted that CPW had mentioned that 125 cfs would provide much 
improved conditions for rainbow trout spawn and that this wasn’t captured in 
the minutes.  A request was made to circulate the requested minutes. 
 
David Gochis of the University/National Center for Atmospheric Research 
(UCAR) presented data from WRF Hydro.  Dave detailed the various models and 
data simulation that they use and noted that when possible, they are using the 
actual Airborne Snow Observatory data from flights over the basin to make 
improvements to model.  Some of the data also includes snow albedo which 
takes into account impacts to reflectance from dust on snow. Dave reported the 
snowpack figures with the ASO flights data for April 20th for the Taylor River 
Basin are:  

• Taylor Park Basin Average Snowpack Snow Water Equivalent (SWE) 
upscaled to WRF Hydro using ASO: 112 kac-ft  

• Taylor River Runoff Prediction WRF Hydro w/ASO: (April-July): 
o Taylor River inflow is 39.8 kac-ft  
o Total Taylor Reservoir Inflow: 72.3 kac-ft (This is quite a bit lower 

than CBRFC by about 20 percent. They are looking into this as 
this caught them off-guard.  A potential reason is their model is 
showing that the Taylor basin is depleted in soil moisture. In 
October 2021 it was below 40 percent. Currently, their model 
shows significant portion of snowpack melt is going into wetting 
soils). 

 
What can we learn from ASO flights and gap radar? David indicated that it 
would be the relationship between ASO snow data and correlations with what 
you can get at a specific Snotel sites. Gap radar will give a better estimate of 



3 
 

total input in a spatially distributed sense across the basin. ASO is not fully 
replaceable in terms of accuracy of predicting snowpack. 
 
General Manager Chavez asked if there are more ASO flights scheduled for this 
spring and Jeffrey Deems of Airborne Snow Observatories confirmed that there 
is at least one more and potentially three more flights planned for this spring, 
depending on wind and weather. Lawrence Berkley funded 2 flights (tying into 
SAIL). CWCB funded two flights funded by state Water Plan grant (which came 
into play late in the season, so they may shift these funds to next season). 
 
Matt Feier of the Gunnison County Electric Association (GCEA) gave a 
presentation on the Taylor River Hydro LLC Operating agreement and project 
update. Matt noted that the thirty percent engineering designs have been 
approved by all parties to the hydropower agreement and they are moving to 
sixty percent design phase. They are hopeful the project can be 100 percent 
complete by November 2023.  He reported that the GCEA will not have any 
water rights under the agreement and that the plant will operate solely as a 
“run of the river” facility, utilizing only the releases made in accordance with 
the decrees.  GCEA will have no claim whatsoever for rates of flow or timing of 
releases for hydroelectric generation or any other purpose. Construction is set 
for May-November 2023. Matt reported that they are shooting for an annual 
production total of 3,812,733 kwh per year, which would provide electricity for 
450 homes in the county annually. He said the hydropower plant will cost 
$2.97 million to construct and include a 10-year payback with 50% Water 
SMART Grant Funding or a 20-year payback with no grant funding. Matt said 
it is likely the Colorado Water Conservation Board will provide low interest rate 
loan financing for potentially up to 50% of the project cost. For operations, 
GCEA will purchase the power from Taylor River Hydropower LLC, a separate 
company developed specifically for the project.  Taylor River Hydropower LLC 
and UVWUA will split profits. Matt was asked if there would be any effects on 
river temperatures or oxidation levels and if the dam will require any additional 
lines or outlets.  Matt replied that there should be no changes to current 
temperatures or oxidation levels and that the project will use the existing outlet 
and lines.  Matt noted that the Bureau of Reclamation is a party to the 
agreement and also involved in doing the 30, 60 and 90 percent reviews of the 
engineering, so they are aware of all plans.  Matt offered that one of the 
engineers for the project could come to a later meeting to update TLUG on 
progress and that perhaps there could be a site visit arranged.  
 
Erik Knight from the Bureau of Reclamation presented the May 1 forecast from 
the Colorado River Basin Forecast Center: 

• Inflows into Taylor (April – July): predicting average 89,880-acre-feet 
(96% of thirty-year average) 

• Max reservoir fill content predicted to fill to 9,323.18 
 



4 
 

Erik said that even if the basin was to get no more snowfall for the rest of the 
season, we would still finish the year at 91% of average, so it doesn’t drop the 
average much. Erik said that while December 2021 snowfall was great – more 
than double of average – all of January through May 2022 had below normal 
snowfall accumulation. He also noted that melt-off has been relatively quick so 
far this season. 
 
Mark Schumacher asked, per the releases noted on Erik’s table, if the flushing 
release of 445 was planned for the first week in June.  Erik replied that, yes, 
this was the current plan but that the actual timing could be moved if needed 
as long as it is completed before the end of June.  Historical peak has been the 
10-12th of June. Mark said that the first week of June should probably work 
okay as when it is pushed to the second week in June it makes it difficult to get 
under some of the bridges depending on flows from the East River. Erik asked 
Mark if he had the data of the maximum heights for flows to still be able to get 
under the bridges.  Mark said he had given a spreadsheet to Sonja that was 
prepared for the Sheriff’s office, as they are the ones who will make the call to 
shut down the river when flows are too high to go under the bridges safely.  He 
noted that it is different for each of the bridges and the different types of boats. 
Sonja offered that this spreadsheet will be shared with Erik and the BOR.  Erik 
noted that if everyone was okay with them having some flexibility, they can 
watch the daily flow forecast for the East River and time the flushing release 
accordingly to try to prevent having to shut down the rafting/boating during 
high flows. Sonja also pointed out to Erik that the Gunnison River Festival 
Taylor Down River Raft Race is tentatively planned for Friday, June 10th, so if 
they can avoid doing the 445 cfs flushing flow at that time, it would be 
beneficial for the festival.  
 
Chairman Sabrowski asked Dan Brauch (CPW) if he had any updates on the 
fishery and Dan reported that the kokanee release had gone well.  He said their 
goal is to get the kokanee downstream to the reservoir as quickly as possible.  
He really appreciated the cooperation he got from the irrigators in helping 
facilitate the release.  Dan also provided follow-up on the question from the 
April meeting regarding the specific target they prefer for rainbow trout 
spawning.  He said that the rainbow trout typically begin spawning in mid-
April and that their preferred target is 125-250 cfs with a water temperature of 
46 degrees.  Dan felt this went well in April this year.  
 
Dan was asked about their plans to refill Spring Creek Reservoir and if there 
would be any effect on downstream flows. Dan said they will attempt to store 
water as they can in Spring Creek and will coordinate and maintain flows to 
meet the needs of the senior water rights downstream to avoid any negative 
impact.  He noted that the CPW would be having a meeting later this afternoon 
to talk more about storage and release plans and that he will provide that info 
to the TLUG.  
 



5 
 

Chairman Sabrowski said they would open discussion among the TLUG 
members for release recommendations and go around the room.  He started 
with Ernie Cockrell.  Ernie said he has recommendations but wanted to take a 
few minutes to look at things from a historical perspective.  He said what he 
and others would like to accomplish within the bounds of the stipulation is to 
protect the biology and habitat of the river.  From Ernie’s perspective, when it 
comes to the biological health of the river, he noted that there is a difference of 
opinion among some of the TLUG representatives, including the UGRWCD, 
with respect to where the October 31st storage objective should be.  He noted 
that the stipulation specifies that the storage can be made to meet or exceed 
the October 31st objective with the understanding that from May through 
October each year, there may be the need to periodically adjust this storage 
level based on actual conditions.  He noted that in the stipulation, the language 
was specifically amended to say “meet or exceed” the October 31st storage level 
and that this is discretionary to the TLUG representatives as they note the 
ever-changing data affecting the storage.  Based on this historical perspective 
and his interpretation of the Stipulation language, Ernie recommended that the 
October 31 end of year storage goal should be 72,143 and that this would 
result in a 91 cfs winter flow rate. 
 
Pete Dunda wants to set current goal to exceed the 70,000 acre feet so that we 
have some room to adjust flows and not miss target. 
 
Sonja Chavez interjected that the meeting had already run its two-hour 
scheduled course and that we need to get some recommendations to the BOR.  
She noted that everyone agrees that we need to be as conservative as possible 
and that because of the extremely dry soil conditions, it is likely that 
adjustments to the flow will need to be made down the road, but that at this 
time she would like to come to a consensus with flow recommendations for 
Erik.   
 
Ernie supports Erik’s recommendation to increase the speed of ramping up to 
five day peak flow faster as a way to conserve more water. 
 
Ryan Birdsey said that he is most concerned about the elevation level saying 
that right now, the concrete boat ramp at Taylor Marina is unusable. They 
need approximately 9,313 feet and he’ll study the elevations more this 
summer. He said they are fortunate that they can shore launch boats from 
other areas around the reservoir but is concerned with congestion on Taylor 
due to low Blue Mesa Reservoir’s elevations. He’d like to keep the Taylor 
elevation a little higher. There was some discussion about shaving two percent 
off of all current flow recommendations for the seven-month period as this 
would achieve the 72,000 acre feet target.  Erik later noted that this approach 
would not work within the model spreadsheet for flows, which is based on a 15 
day average.  
 



6 
 

Mark Schumacher noted that he has always appreciated and respected Ernie’s 
water right and noted that since he was on the UGRWCD Board during the 
negotiations for the Amended Stipulation, he was heavily involved in the 
outcome of the Amended Stipulation and that it became an almost full-time job 
for him during this period.  He noted that he greatly appreciates Ernie’s water 
rights as it helps all in the group. Mark stated that he does disagree, however, 
with Ernie’s assessment that the October 31st storage goal should be 72,000 
acre-feet.  He noted that this cuts the flows in early August to a minimum he 
needs to operate his business during the peak of the rafting season.  He 
recommends taking 50 cfs from the last half of the September and move them 
up to the first two weeks of August which results in flows of 300 cfs, which is 
what his water users need.  Mark also noted that Erik Knight notes that with 
an end of October storage level of 70,000 acre feet with an average winter, the 
reservoir will fill for the next water year. Mark said this also results in our 
using our water right to its fullest extent. 
 
Roark noted that he hasn’t seen the flows drop below 75 cfs for the winter flow. 
He supports shooting for higher end of year target at 72,000 acre-feet with the 
reality that if hydrology deteriorates it may be a moot point anyway and we are 
back at minimum of 70,000 acre-feet.  
 
Mark also asked Dan Brauch if last year when TLUG recommended that 
releases be dropped to 100 cfs at the beginning of October and later to 85 cfs, if 
that worked out okay for the fishery. Dan said that this worked fine last year.  
Mark recommended that if conditions worsen through the next few months 
that perhaps the representatives could look at decreasing some of the October 
flows accordingly.  Ernie said he thinks it is dangerous to start looking at 
cutting flows in September and October as during these months the river is 
more prone to algae growth and this is when there is a large influx of fish 
needing nutrition.  He cautioned against getting flow rates too low during this 
period. 
 
The TLUG members eventually came to the following consensus for their 
recommendation to the UGRWCD Board (NOTE: the final numbers were 
verified between Sonja and Erik via telephone on 5/11/22):  
 

May 1-15: 140 
May 16-31:  250 cfs 
June 1-15:  350 cfs (June 1 go to 350 cfs. June 2-6 at 445 cfs. June 7 

drop to 400, June 8 to 350 cfs) 
June 16-30: 350 cfs 
July 1-15:  350 cfs  
July 16-31: 325 cfs (includes change to 300 cfs on July 24) 
August 1- 15:  300 cfs 
August 16-31: 250 cfs 
September 1-15: 250 



7 
 

September 16-30:  200 cfs 
October 1-15:  100 cfs (Start ramping down by 25 cfs on Oct 1 so that on 

October 4 we are at 100 cfs) 
October 16-31: 91 cfs (*End of Oct content 72,600 AF) 

 
*This is an adaptive management program. The TLUG is trying to conserve 
water early in the season, which is why the end of year target is 72,600 AF. 
This allows the group a little room to make possible future adjustments 
(decreases) to releases when hydrology deteriorates in order not to exceed the 
minimum end of year storage objective of 70,000 AF in an average dry year.  

 
TLUG group was in consensus agreement.   
 
Chairman Sabrowski asked for any Citizen comments and none were brought 
forth. 
 
The next meeting was set for Thursday, June 7 at 9:30 AM.  Chairman 
Sabrowski adjourned the meeting at 12:46 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 
220506 EDUCATION COMMITTEE SUMMARY_FINAL 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Board of Directors  

FROM: Education and Outreach Committee 

DATE: May 6, 2022 

SUBJECT: Summary of Education and Outreach Committee Meeting 

A meeting of the Education and Outreach Committee was held on May 6, 2022 at 
3:00 p.m. Bill Nesbitt, Stacy McPhail, Sonja Chavez, Beverly Richards, and Cheryl 
Cwelich were in attendance.  Rosemary Carroll attended by Zoom conference. Bill 
Nesbitt called the meeting to order. 

Agenda items included a review of the 2022 Education and Outreach Action Plan 
and accomplishments and budget expenditures to date.  As a result of these 
discussions the following action and discussion items were identified: 

• Staff will continue to work through the 2022 Action Plan and will provide
regular updates to the Board of Directors

• Staff will determine if additional books are required for 1st grade giveaway,
currently 167 books remaining in our stock.  Distribution to all schools will be
made in November-December 2022.

• Staff will continue KBUT underwriting but will suspend weekly newspaper
items on flows, etc., and see if anyone misses them. Staff opinion was that
they didn’t think it was a good use of educational funds (e.g., people only see
what flow is on a single day of the week, the message is not really educating
anyone, etc.).

• Committee members provided numerous suggestions for future outreach
activities such as educational tours for certain groups, field trips to Water
Center in Grand Junction, and question and answer articles for the
newspaper.

• Staff will consider purchasing t-shirts in 2023 with a UGRWCD conservation
message.  Once messaging is approved,  staff will obtain pricing for an
inventory of shirts for events happening throughout the basin.

• Staff will continue with a river clean up event in the 2023 action plan.
• Education and Outreach Committee will meet again in September to discuss

2023 budget.

Adjournment 

Bill Nesbitt adjourned the meeting at 3:55 p.m. 

Exhibit C

Sue
Highlight



AGENDA ITEM 7
Scientific Endeavors Update



AGENDA ITEM 7
Gunnison Basin Roundtable



AGENDA ITEM 7
Gunnison River Festival Update



AGENDA ITEM 8
Miscellaneous Matters



����������	
�����������������
���������������
��������� �!�"#$ �%#�&'(�)���*"+�#�,��-./�0����
�1�.23�������
�����
����������4����
�0���
��	
��5��67""8 %"98�%�:"# !�"#$ �%#�&'("&�����������;�����<����� �6=��>- �<��>-�����?������;�����@����� �6=A�>- ??6A�>-������������;����������� ��- ��-������������;�����?����� ��- ��-�����=������;����A������ ��- ��-�5��������3
��B A�=�>-�C����
0��5
����3
��B �6�<�5-�D�����
�/���B A6?E�5-�F�	���G��C�
�0���
�B �=6<�5-�D
0��H9#I���JKKL"��	
�������G
���B��@<6��M�D
0������
		���������N0�������
	B�O�P#""L
Q#�:L"#�����L'++�#�"&,���5���
�
	��R�4�1��

4��.��
G�1�S���	
T�
��U�	�����
������������	�������V�

>�
	�5�R��4�����V���������T�����4���V�	���0���6WXY�Z[\�]\



5 <---- Month to Summarize (change this number to look at a different month)
PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO REVISION

Daily Summary for Month --> May

1st Fill  2nd Fill  Other Aspinall BP Accnt AU Accnt 1st Fill Contract Tot 1st fill

Day of 
Month

Silver Jack 
Reservoir & 
Juniors In 

Priority 
(1=Yes, 
0=No)

TP 
Releases 
from TP 
1st Fill 
(1=Yes, 
0=No)

Excess 
Released 
TP Inflow 
and AU 

Nat 
Inflow 
(cfs)

Gun 
Tunnel 
(GT) 

Shortage 
after AU 

Nat 
Inflow 

and TP 
Inflow 
(cfs)

3-Day 
Average 
Excess 

TP Inflow 
and AU 

Nat 
Inflow 
(cfs)

3-Day Ave. 
GT 

Shortage 
after AU 

Nat Inflow 
and TP 
Inflow    
(cfs)

TP Res. 
Content 

(af)

TP - 
USGS 
outflow 

(cfs)

TP 
Compute
d Inflow 

(cfs)

1st Fill - 
Storage -

in TP 
(af)

2nd Fill -
Storage 
- in TP 

(af)

Other 
Account 
Storage 
in TP - 
Storage 

- (af)

AU 
Storag
e in TP 
- (af)

SJ Res 
Content 

(af)

SJ Inflow 
to 

Reservoir 
Storage 

(cfs)

BP - 
Storage - 
in SJ (af)

AU 
Water - 

Storage - 
in SJ (af)

BM Res 
Content 

(af)

MP Res 
Content 

(af)

CR Res 
Content 

(af)

AU 
Change 

In 
Storage 

(af)

Computed 
rel from 
CR (cfs)

AU inflow 
below TP 

& with 
AU Aug 
Rel (cfs) #REF!

UGRWC
D 

Contract 
water     
(af)

Gun. 
River 
below 
East 

Portal    
(cfs)

Total 
Gunnison 

Tunnel 
Divs (cfs)

GT Divs - 
AU inflow 
minus TP 
released 

inflow 
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
TP 

Released 
Inflow 
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
SJ 

Storage 
Inflow by 
AU Exch 

(cfs)

GT Divs - 
UGRWC

D 
Contract 
Water 

Rel    
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
Rel from 
2nd Fill 

for 
Rec/Fish  

(cfs)

GT Divs - 
1st Fill 

Credit in 
BM     
(cfs) #REF!

Remain. 
1st Fill 

Credits in 
TP and 

AU      
(af)

(1) (2) (3) (5) (6) (7) (8) (11) (14) (15) (19) (25) (30) (34) (36) (39) (43) (47) (49) (77) (100) (124) (125) (127) #REF! #REF! (128) (131) (132) (133) (134) (135) (136) (137) #REF! (140)

1 1 1 1,554 0 1,375 0 59,375 126 180 30,934 28,442 0 0 1,090 0 1,090 0 255,915 112,054 16,618 2,165 708 1,703   379 329 329 0 0 0 0 0  105,829
2 1 1 1,409 0 1,396 0 59,476 136 190 30,660 28,815 0 0 1,090 0 1,090 0 257,907 112,117 16,417 1,854 831 1,660   390 441 441 0 0 0 0 0  105,825
3 1 1 1,502 0 1,488 0 59,505 140 158 30,379 29,125 0 0 1,090 0 1,090 0 259,905 112,220 16,464 2,148 906 1,879   371 535 535 0 0 0 0 0  105,822
4 1 1 1,098 0 1,336 0 59,576 139 179 30,100 29,476 0 0 1,090 0 1,090 0 261,214 112,149 16,397 1,171 1,226 1,707   438 788 788 0 0 0 0 0  105,819
5 1 1 621 0 1,074 0 59,591 140 151 29,819 29,772 0 0 1,090 0 1,090 0 262,574 111,303 16,270 386 1,417 1,502   386 1,031 1,031 0 0 0 0 0  105,815
6 1 1 918 0 879 0 59,720 140 209 29,538 30,182 0 0 1,090 0 1,090 0 264,185 110,611 16,209 858 1,417 1,739   387 1,030 1,030 0 0 0 0 0  105,812
7 1 1 1,667 0 1,069 0 60,022 140 296 29,257 30,765 0 0 1,090 0 1,090 0 266,780 110,070 16,322 2,167 1,419 2,402   388 1,031 1,031 0 0 0 0 0  105,809
8 1 1 2,571 0 1,719 0 60,482 141 376 28,974 31,508 0 0 1,090 0 1,090 0 270,509 109,953 16,511 3,800 1,419 3,224   389 1,030 1,030 0 0 0 0 0  105,805
9 1 1 2,923 0 2,387 0 60,945 140 377 28,693 32,252 0 0 4,035 1,485 4,035 0 273,855 111,114 16,502 4,499 1,418 3,577   387 1,031 1,031 0 0 0 0 0  105,802
10 1 1 0   0  
11 1 1 0   0  
12 1 1 0   0  
13 1 1 0   0  
14 1 1 0   0  
15 1 1 0   0  
16 1 1 0   0  
17 1 1 0   0  
18 1 1 0   0  
19 1 1 0   0  
20 1 1 0   0  
21 1 1 0   0  
22 1 1 0   0  
23 1 1 0   0  
24 1 1 0   0  
25 1 1 0   0  
26 1 1 0   0  
27 1 1 0   0  
28 1 1 0   0  
29 1 1 0   0  
30 1 1 0   0  
31 1 1 0   0  

Total 31 31 14,262 0 12,722 0 1,242 2,114 1,486 19,049 10,759 19,393 3,515 7,244 7,244 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tot (af) 28,289 0 25,234 0 2,464 4,193 2,948 37,783 21,341 38,465 6,972 14,369 14,369 0 0 0 0 0 0
Min 1 1 621 0 879 0 59,375 0 151 28,693 28,442 0 0 1,090 0 1,090 0 255,915 109,953 16,209 386 708 1,502 0 0 0 329 329 0 0 0 0 0 0 105,802
Max 1 1 2,923 0 2,387 0 60,945 141 377 30,934 32,252 0 0 4,035 1,485 4,035 0 273,855 112,220 16,618 4,499 1,419 3,577 0 0 438 1,031 1,031 0 0 0 0 0 0 105,829

Annual Summary (all values in ac-ft)  Note: Reservoir content is the end of the month content 
(days) (days) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af)

Nov 30 30 33,397 0 31,516 0 58,737 4,470 4,632 54,117 4,620 0 0 1,713 300 1,713 0 220,759 110,430 15,977 11,721 20,025 29,369  19,420 604 604 0 0 0 0  105,924
Dec 31 31 25,577 0 25,158 0 58,695 4,564 4,521 49,554 9,141 0 0 1,790 166 1,790 0 232,145 105,687 16,102 6,769 20,080 22,285  18,851 1,229 1,229 0 0 0 0  105,924
Jan 31 31 22,806 0 23,602 0 58,327 4,412 4,043 45,142 13,184 0 0 1,906 116 1,906 0 237,819 104,652 16,186 4,722 19,520 19,830  18,453 1,067 1,067 0 0 0 0  105,924
Feb 28 28 20,714 0 20,519 0 57,749 4,096 3,518 41,046 16,703 0 0 1,906 0 1,906 0 242,463 105,444 15,052 4,304 17,228 17,436  16,989 239 239 0 0 0 0  105,924
Mar 31 31 31,306 0 30,735 0 57,303 4,581 4,135 36,564 20,739 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 240,539 108,948 16,820 3,347 32,745 35,299  24,617 8,128 8,030 99 0 0 0  105,924
Apr 30 30 42,762 22 41,530 22 59,275 5,945 7,917 31,187 28,088 0 0 1,090 0 1,090 0 254,027 111,643 16,753 16,115 54,634 66,059  23,397 31,237 30,577 554 0 14 92  105,832
May 31 31 28,289 0 25,234 0 2,464 4,193 2,948 19,049 21,341 38,465  6,972 14,369 14,369 0 0 0 0  
Jun 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Jul 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Aug 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Sep 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Oct 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Total 365 365 204,852 22 198,295 22 30,530 32,961 3,530 66,026 185,573 228,743 128,699 56,874 56,116 653 0 14 92 0
Min 28 28 0 0 0 0 57,303 0 0 31,187 9,141 0 0 1,090 0 1,090 0 232,145 104,652 15,052 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 105,832
Max 31 31 42,762 22 41,530 22 59,275 5,945 7,917 49,554 28,088 0 0 1,906 2,948 1,906 0 254,027 111,643 16,820 19,049 54,634 66,059 0 24,617 31,237 30,577 554 0 14 92 0 105,924

Type of Water Diverted into Tunnel

TO

Taylor Park Reservoir Aspinall Unit GUNNISON TUNNEL ALLOCATION
River Call Average Flow Reservoir

Silver Jack Reservoir
Reservoir Reservoir Contents Total Aspinall Unit Inflow Streamflow and Divs

























































































AGENDA ITEM 9
Citizens Comments



AGENDA ITEM 10
Future Meetings



FUTURE MEETINGS/EVENTS

 Deadline for Letters to Judge for UGRWCD Board Terms - May 27, 5:00 PM
 Memorial Day, Offices Closed - May 30th
 Financial Audit by Paul Miller - May 30th - June 3rd
 TLUG Meeting - June 7, 9:30 AM
 UGRWCD Water Roundup at IBar Ranch - June 9th and 10th
 20th Anniversary of the Gunnison River Festival - June 10th - 12th
 Independence Day, Offices Closed - July 4
 Watershed Management Planning Committee Meeting - July 12, 1:30 PM



AGENDA ITEM 11
Summary of Action Items



AGENDA ITEM 12
Adjournment



Lake San Cristobal Water Activity Enterprise 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Lake City Fire Station 
131 North Henson Street 

Lake City, CO  81235 

AGENDA 
ANNUAL MEETING 

May 24, 2022 
3:00 P.M. 

3:00 p.m. 1. Call to Order 

3:02 p.m. 2. Agenda Approval 

3:05 p.m. 3. Election of Officers 

3:15 p.m. 4. Approval of May 25, 2021 Annual Meeting Minutes 

3:20 p.m. 5. Approval of April 5, 2022 Special Meeting Minutes 

3:25 p.m. 6. Review of Budget Summary and Discussion and Adoption of 

2022 Budget (7/3/2022-6/30/2023) 

3:35 p.m. 7. Current Operations Status

• County Staff Training on Gate Operation

• 2022 Operations Discussion

• Potential for CWCB Instream Flow Release in 2022

4:00 p.m. 8. Miscellaneous Matters 

• Aquatic Nuisance Species

4:30 p.m. 9. Unscheduled Citizens 

4:35 p.m.  10. Future Meetings 

4:40 p.m.   11. Adjournment 

Note: This agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items or the deletion of items at any time.  All 

times are approximate.  Regular meetings, public hearings, and special meetings have documented minutes and 
action can be taken on any item. The Board may address individual agenda items at any time or in any order to 
accommodate the needs of the Board and the audience.  



LSCWAE AGENDA ITEM 3
Election of Officers



1 

 

Lake San Cristobal Water Activity Enterprise 
Annual Board Meeting Minutes 

Monday, May 25, 2021 
 
 

The Board of Directors of the Lake San Cristobal Water Activity Enterprise 

conducted its regular, annual meeting on Tuesday, May 25, 2021 at 3:00 p.m. 

in the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District offices at 210 West 

Spencer, Suite B, Gunnison, Colorado 81230.   

 

Board members present:  

Thomas Carl, LSCWAE Board Member 

Robert Hurd, Hinsdale County 

Bill Nesbitt, Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District (UGRWCD) 

Michelle Pierce, Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District  

Camille Richard, Lake Fork Conservancy (via Zoom video/teleconferencing)  

Henry Woods, Town of Lake City (via Zoom video/teleconferencing)  

 

Others present: 

John McClow, General Counsel UGRWCD 

Beverly Richards, Administrative Assistant UGRWCD 

Jill Steele, Accountant/Office Manager UGRWCD 

Sue Uerling, Administrative Assistant UGRWCD 

Sonja Chavez, General Manager UGRWCD 

   

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

LSCWAE Board President Michelle Pierce called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Robert Hurd seconded approval of the  

agenda as circulated.  The motion carried. 

 

3. APPOINTMENT OF OFFICERS 

 

The current officers of the LSCWAE are:  President Michelle Pierce, Vice President 

Henry Wood and Secretary/Treasurer Bill Nesbitt. All agreed to continue to serve in 

Their current roles for the 2021-2022 fiscal year. 

 



2 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Camille Richard seconded the approval 

 of the LSCWAE slate of officers for 2021-2022. The motion carried. 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MAY 26, 2020 LSCWAE MINUTES 

 

Director Camille Richard moved and Director Robert Hurd seconded approval of 

the May 26, 2020 meeting minutes as circulated. Director Bill Nesbitt 

abstained. The motion carried.   

 

4. APPROVAL OF AUGUST 28, 2020 SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

 

Director Robert Hurd moved and Camille Richard seconded approval of 

the August 28, 2020 special meeting minutes.  The motion carried.   

 

5. APPROVAL of 2020 AUDIT 

 

UGRWCD Accountant/Office Manager Jill Steele briefly reviewed highlights of the 

2020 audit.  Jill pointed out that in Paul Miller’s Independent Auditor’s Report Letter 

under “Emphasis of Matter,” Mr. Miller notes that the Management Discussion and 

Report is missing.  Jill said this is because he has nothing for comparison.  Since the 

LSCWAE audit is required every five years, the auditor will be able to use the 2020 

audit for the Management Discussion and Report next time. 

 

Director Nesbitt asked how many LSC augmentation units are still available for sale 

and Jill answered that there are 7,350 units available.  

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Camille Richard seconded the approval of the 

2020 Audit. The motion carried. 

 

6. DISCUSSION AND ADOPTION OF 2021 BUDGET 

 

UGRWCD General Manager Sonja Chavez briefly highlighted some of the components 

of the 2021 budget, including a $6,000 line item expense for Obermeyer to come to 

LSC for a service call/equipment repair; a $2,000 line item for general maintenance 

of the outlet; and $12,270 for operations of the USGS stream gages. Director Hurd 

and Sonja both noted how difficult it has been to get Obermeyer to commit to a date 

as to when they can make the service call.  It was agreed that if Obermeyer cannot 

make it within the next week or so, then the service will need to wait until fall. Sonja 

noted that there is also a new line item for training costs for Hinsdale County to train 

two new LSC gate outlet technicians who can eventually take over for Robert Hurd. 



3 

 

Bev also reported that a service call to repair the camera will take place on June 4, 

2021.  Director Hurd noted that he does not access to the camera. Director Camille 

Richard said that $1,500 for signage at the outlet had been approved for the 2020 

budget, but since the sign had not yet been installed, she did not have a bill to 

submit for payment from the 2020 budget.  It was recommended that a line item for 

LSC signage in the amount of $1,500 be included in the new budget.   

 

Director Robert Hurd moved and Director Bill Nesbit seconded the motion to 

adopt the 2021-22 Budget as presented with the addition of a $1,500 line item 

for signage at the Lake San Cristobal outlet. The motion carried.   

 

7. CURRENT OPERATIONS STATUS 

 

A. Contract with Robert Hurd 

 

President Michelle Pierce referenced the contract with Director Robert Hurd for 

maintenance of the LSC outlet and LSCWAE voiced their approval of having 

Robert Hurd continue in this role until at least two new technicians can be 

hired and trained. Robert has disclosed and will continue to disclose any 

conflict of interest that may arise with him now also serving as a Hinsdale 

County Commissioner.   

 

B. County Staff Training on Gate Operation 

 

Director Hurd said he is hoping to hire and train a couple of new people, 

possibly from the road and bridge department, to learn the outlet operations. It 

was noted that Robert did express his desire to bow out of the technician role 

in a couple of years after the new hires have been fully trained. 

 

C.  REVIEW OF GATE OPERATIONS 2020/21 

 

Director Robert Hurd reported that new filters were installed in the outlet this 

past year and that this has helped some in keeping the readings consistent, as 

they keep moisture out of the electronic system.  Robert’s biggest concern now 

is getting Obermeyer to come out to service the system so that his readings 

match the USGS readings.  Robert said he can adjust the settings to get the 

system to match the USGS readings but then after 7-10 days, the readings are 

off again.  The system is not holding the revised settings.  Obermeyer has not 

been returning calls to the UGRWCD, so the service call will probably have to 

be put off until fall due to the need to conserve water.   



4 

 

 

Director Nesbitt asked if there was someone from the federal or state 

government that we are required to provide accurate reports to on LSC 

elevations or storage.  General Counsel John McClow answered that the Water 

Commissioner keeps the records and that our only responsibilities are to not 

exceed the reservoir storage limit and to execute releases according to the 

augmentation contracts we manage.  John pointed out that this is not Robert’s 

responsibility and that these are two unrelated issues.   

 

There was some discussion about how to encourage more augmentation 

contract sales.  If the dry conditions continue to persist and some water right 

holders above the outlet get water calls, it may result in more units being sold.   

 

D. DIVISION OF NATURAL RESOURCES DECISION ABOUT GUNNISON 

TUNNEL CALLS 

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez referenced the newspaper article “No Gunnison 

Tunnel call this summer” circulated in the meeting packet and explained that 

in a nutshell, the Uncompahgre Valley Water Users Association (UVWUA) could 

not take all the water being released from the Aspinall Unit that was available 

for appropriation (i.e. there is water flowing over the Gunnison Tunnel 

diversion), therefore the Division of Water Resources cannot honor a UVWUA 

Gunnison Tunnel Call.  The LSCWAE Board agreed that this was good news 

during the continuing drought.  

 

E. POTENTIAL FOR CWCB INSTREAM FLOW RELEASE IN 2021 

 

There was discussion about whether or not a water call will be placed on Lake 

San Cristobal this summer.  It was reported that Peggy Smart would probably 

be the water commissioner making the call request and that it might not be a 

bad thing for the LSCWAE if a call is made.  General Counsel John McClow 

said the LSCWAE can also make voluntary releases. The consensus of the 

group was to wait and see what the summer brings. 

 

9. MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS 

 

A. USGS TETHER POLES FOR LAKE RELEASE READINGS 

 

There was some discussion about whether or not poles could be erected on 

either side of the outlet with a tether of loop around the poles to manually 



5 

 

measure releases from Lake San Cristobal, something that was suggested by 

the USGS.  Currently the county owns the property on one bank and the other 

bank (east side) is privately owned, although John McClow reported that the 

county has an easement on the east bank too.  General Manager Sonja Chavez 

offered to reach out to Steve Anders of the USGS to see if this tether loop 

arrangement would have any real value to them or if they are satisfied with the 

electronic gage system.  Director Henry Wood expressed frustration with having 

to pay the USGS every year for measuring saying, “It seems to me that they 

could pay for their own measuring.”  Harry also expressed concerned about 

whether or not the elevation of the lake is really 8,995 acre feet.  He suggested 

installing another staff for manual measurements.  President Michelle Pierce 

said that if the current gage wears out or is not accurate, the LSCWAE would 

look into replacing it at a different location.  Sonja noted that she does not 

believe a manual lake elevation measuring device is necessary if we have 

electronic readings, that it would be expensive to move the staff gage, and that 

she does not want anyone trying to obtain manual measurements, especially in 

the winter, as it is way too dangerous and unnecessary.  Sonja said she is 

confident in the electronic lake elevation readings and that the system is 

operating properly. 

 

B. COUNTY QUESTION: UPSTREAM INFLOW GAGE  

 

Director Robert Hurd said that if a new outlet gage was to be purchased, the 

best place to install it would be at the upper bridge. There was discussion that 

since the LSCWAE is already paying the USGS a substantial amount annually 

for measurements, is there really a need for another gage, which would also be 

expensive.  General Counsel John McClow pointed out that if you know the 

measurement of your lake elevation and what your releases are, you can do a 

mathematical calculation for inflows and that adding an upstream inflow gage 

was entirely unnecessary.   

 

C. AQUATIC NUISANCE SPECIES:  SIGNAGE 

 

There was discussion about whether there should be signage erected at Lake 

San Cristobal to let boaters know that they can get a hull inspection for aquatic 

nuisance species at Blue Mesa Reservoir. Director Robert Hurd noted that 

there is already such a sign at LSC, but it is currently covered up by willows.  

He offered to oversee getting the willows cut down so that the sign is visible. 

General Manager Sonja Chavez noted that during a Zoom meeting with 

Colorado Parks and Wildlife, CPW also said they would have one of their staff 



6 

 

conduct roving inspections at LSC.  General Counsel John McClow also noted 

that the Colorado State Patrol has also been authorized to stop any driver 

towing a boat on Colorado highways to inspect it for nuisance species. There is 

also a service dog now trained to detect aquatic nuisance species. 

 

D. Other Miscellaneous Matters 

Bill Nesbitt (Secretary/Treasurer) also noted that the LSCWAE is carrying a 

significant balance of cash in its checking account, and he would like the 

Board to look at options to earn some interest. President Michelle Pierce asked 

if Bill, Accountant Jill Steele and General Manager Sonja Chavez could look 

into options for investing some of the LSCWAE cash in interest earning 

investments. 

 

 

10. UNSCHEDULED CITIZENS 

 

 

11. FUTURE MEETINGS 

 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Lake San Cristobal Water Activity 

Enterprise will take place in May of 2022, unless any special meetings are called in 

the meantime. 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Board Chair Michelle Pierce adjourned the May 25, 2021 meeting at 4:05 p.m. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Bill Nesbitt, Secretary/Treasurer 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Michelle Pierce, President 



LAKE SAN CRISTOBAL WATER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - SPECIAL MEETING  

In Person and via Zoom Teleconference 

April 5, 2022 

11:30 a.m. 

 

The Board of Directors of the Lake San Cristobal Water Activity Enterprise 

conducted a special meeting on Tuesday, April 5, 2022, at 11:30 a.m. 

 

Board members present:  Tom Carl, Robert Hurd, Bill Nesbitt, Michelle Pierce, 

Camille Richard, and Henry Woods. 

 

Sonja Chavez, UGRWCD General Manager 

Joellen Fonken, UGRWCD Board Member 

Anthony Girodo, United Companies 

Grant Huston, Silver World Publishing 

Vance Lipsey, Town of Lake City Manager 

John McClow, UGRWCD General Counsel 

Mark Painter, United Companies 

John Perusek, UGRWCD Board Member 

Beverly Richards, UGRWCD Water Resource Specialist 

Jill Steele, UGRWCD Accountant 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Board President Michelle Pierce called the meeting to order at 11:25 a.m. 

 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Robert Hurd moved and Henry Woods seconded approval of the agenda as 

presented. The motion carried.  

 

3. UNITED COMPANIES’ REQUEST FOR LSCWAE WATER IN SUPPORT 

OF HIGHWAY 149 PAVING PROJECT 

 

Anthony Girodo of United Companies addressed the board.  United Companies 

is involved in a paving project on Highway 149 and they have requested to use 

water from Lake San Cristobal in conjunction with the project.  It would be for 

a maximum of 35,000 gallons per day for up to 25 days.   

 



Henry Woods suggested including a bit of flexibility on time in case the water is 

needed for more than twenty-five days.  He noted that it would still be the same 

total amount of water. 

 

Bill Nesbitt arrived.  

 

Pricing information from augmentation water sales out of Lake San Cristobal 

was used to arrive at a potential cost for the water: 

 

54 base units @ $55.00 = $2,970.00 

Administration fee = $20.00 

TOTAL = $2,990.00 

 

Robert Hurd moved and Bill Nesbitt seconded to request payment of 

$2,990 for use of water for up to 45 days.  The motion carried. 

 

4. UNSCHEDULED CITIZENS 

 

Mark Painter, of United Companies, said he had no additional information or 

questions.  They will check to see if they already have a form W-9 from the 

District.  

 

5. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 Board President Michelle Pierce adjourned the April 5, 2022 special meeting at 

11:40 a.m.   

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

________________________ 

Michelle Pierce 

President 

 

 

 

________________________ 

Bill Nesbitt 

Secretary-Treasurer 



5/11/2022

                          LAKE SAN CRISTOBAL WATER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE BUDGET SUMMARY 2021
                                                              Fiscal Year July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022

REVENUES/

EXPENSES

2021 2021 % OF 2021 OVER/(UNDER)

YTD BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET

REVENUES

Water Sales and Annual Assessments on Sold Base Units 10,965$      9,891$        111% 1,074.50$   

Water Sale - United Company one-time purchase 2,990          -              2,990.00$   

Three Member Entities' Fees on Un-sold Base Units

    UGRWCD 13,464        13,464        100% -              

    Hinsdale County 13,464        13,464        100% -              

    Town of Lake City 6,152          6,152          100% -              

Interest on Investments -              -              -              

Other Income -              -              -              

TOTAL REVENUES 47,035$      42,970$      109% 4,065$        

EXPENSES

Legal Expenses -$            -$            -$            

Construction -              -              -              

Outlet Works Repair 1,798          6,000          30% (4,202)         

Equipment Repair 5,867          2,000          293% 3,867          

Audit & Accounting -              

Public Outreach -              1,500          0% (1,500)         

Operations - USGS Gage (UGRWCD pass-thru) 12,636        12,270        103% 366             

Operations - Gate Maintenance Contract Work 448             3,000          15% (2,552)         

Operating Expenses - Hinsdale County -              4,000          0% (4,000)         

Operating Expenses - Town of lake City -              

Operating Expenses - UGRWCD 5,278          0% (5,278)         

     Utilities 2,299          2,500          92% (201)            

Office Expenses -              450             0% (450)            

Total Operating Expenses 23,048$      36,998$      62% (13,950)$    

Revenue Over (Under) Expenses 23,986$      5,972$        402% 18,014$      



LAKE SAN CRISTOBAL WATER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE 2022 BUDGET

July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

2020 2021 2021 2022

ACTUAL BUDGET YTD BUDGET

7/1/20 - 7/1/21 - 7/1/21 - 7/1/22 -

6/30/2021 6/30/2022 5/5/2022 6/30/2023

REVENUE

Water Sales & Assessments & Admin. Fees on Contracts 9,891$    9,891$        10,965$   10,965$     

Water Sale - United Company, one-time purchase -          -              2,990       -             

Three Member Entities' Fees on Un-sold Base Units (see Note)

     UGRWCD 13,464    13,464        13,464     13,463       

     Hinsdale County 13,464    13,464        13,464     13,377       

     Town of Lake City 6,152      6,152          6,152       6,150         

Interest on Investments -          -              -           -             

Additional Contributions by Member Entities -          -              -           -             

Other Income -          -              -           -             

TOTAL REVENUE 42,971$  42,970$      47,034$   43,954$     

EXPENSES

Legal Expenses -$        -$            -$        -$           

Construction -          -              -           -             

Outlet Works Repair -          6,000          1,798       6,000         

Equipment Repair 1,462      2,000          5,867 2,000         

Audit & Accounting (every 5 years) 1,700      -              -             

Public Outreach 1,500          1,500         

Operations - USGS Gage 12,268    12,270        12,636     12,270       

Operations - Gate Maintenance Contract Work 1,346      3,000          448          3,000         

Operating Expenses - Hinsdale County 4,000          -           4,000         

Operating Expenses - Town of Lake City -          -              -           -             

Operating Expenses - UGRWCD -          5,278          -           5,278         

     Utilities 2,782      2,500          2,299 2,500         

Office Expenses 79           450             -           450            

TOTAL EXPENSES 19,636$  36,998$      23,048$   36,998$     

Revenue Over (Under) Expenses 23,335$  5,972$        23,986$   6,956$       

Contribution to Capital Reserve 1,815$    1,815$        1,815$     1,815$       

Sales price per base unit 55.00$       

Annual assessment per base unit 4.50$         

NOTE:  Break out of fees charged to member entities: Hinsdale Town of

UGRWCD County Lake City

Total base units originally available: 9500

Base units each entity (9500/3) 3,167          3,167       3,167         

Base units sold per entity 175             194          1,800         

Base units remaining per entity 2,992          2,973       1,367         

Fees on unsold base units per entity @ $4.50 13,463$      13,377$   6,150$       

Total base units remaining for sale 7331

D    R    A    F    T



July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023 - Page 2

We, the undersigned officers of the Board of Directors of the Lake San Cristobal Water

Activity Enterprise, do hereby certify that the above is a true copy of the

2022 Lake San Cristobal Water Activity Enterprise Budget as adopted by the Board of

Directors on May 24, 2022

______________________________

Michelle Pierce, Chairperson

ATTEST:

______________________________

William J. Nesbitt, Secretary/Treasurer

LAKE SAN CRISTOBAL WATER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE 2022 BUDGET



LSCWAE AGENDA ITEM 7
Current Operations



LSCWAE AGENDA ITEM 8
Miscellaneous Matters



LSCWAE AGENDA ITEM 9

Citizen Comments



LSCWAE AGENDA ITEM 10

Future Meetings



LSCWAE AGENDA ITEM 11
Adjournment


	Agenda - May 24, 2022
	Agenda Item 3 - Consent Agenda Items
	Approval of April 25, 2022 Minutes
	Monthly Budget Summary
	Consideration of Expenses

	Agenda Item 4 - Legal and Legislative Matters
	Legislative Activity Report
	Policy Regarding Endorsements by Directors  - Action

	Agenda Item 5 - Presentation by Jeff Derry, Dust on Snow in San Juan Basin
	Agenda Item 6 - Basin Water Supply Report
	Agenda Item 7 - General Manager, Committee and Staff Updates
	Treasurer's Report
	General Manager's Update
	"Water Roundup" 2022 Conference Planning Update
	Wet Meadows Program Update
	Taylor Local User's Group Update
	May 5, 2022 Meeting Summary

	Education and Outlook Committee
	May 6, 2022 Meeting Summary

	Scientific Endeavors
	Gunnison Basin Roundtable 
	Gunnison River Festival Update

	Agenda Item 8 - Miscellaneous Matters
	Gunnison Energy Production Report - Solar Panels
	Current Gunnison River Spreadsheet
	Newspaper Articles and Other Water News

	Agenda Item 9 - Citizens Comments
	Agenda Item 10 - Future Meetings
	Agenda Item 11 - Summary of Meeting Action Items
	Agenda Item 12 - Adjournment
	LSCWAE Annual Meeting Agenda - May 24, 2022
	LSCWAE Agenda Item 3 - Election of LSCWAE Officers for 2022
	LSCWAE Agenda Item 4 - Approval of May 25, 2021 Annual Meeting Minutes
	Agenda Item 5 - Approval of April 5, 2022 Special Meeting Minutes
	Agenda Item 6 - Review of Budget Summary and Adoption of 2022 Budget
	LSCWAE Agenda Item 7 - Current Operations Status
	County Staff Training on Gate Operation
	2022 Operations Discussion
	Potential for CWCB Instream Flow Release in 2022

	LSCWAE Agenda Item 8 - Miscellaneous Matters
	LSCWAE Agenda Item 9 - Citizen Comments
	LSCWAE Agenda Item 10 - Future Meetings?
	LSCWAE Agenda 11 - Meeting Adjournment



